V-IVINRC..

Jivirg Iovidagy Bl

V-IVINRC...

Jeeyo Zindagi Befikar...

V-MARC INDIA LIMITED

CIN: L31908UR2014PLC001066

(Formerly known as Asian Galaxy Private Limited)




V-MARC..

INDEX

About Company
History
Our Journey
Company Profile
List of Certifications
Approvals
Prestigious Clients
Customer & Dealer Network
Corporate Information
Message from the Desk of Managing Director
Board of Directors
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Directors Report
Annexures to Director’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report
Balance Sheet
Profit & Loss Account
Cash Flow Statement
Notes on the Financial Statement

Notice of Annual General Meeting



\ 4

V-MARC..

About Company

“V-Marc” is among the global leaders in providing reliable and consistent quality of
products. By supplying our optimally priced high quality products we enable our clients to
achieve more and outperform their competitors and stay ahead of the innovation curve.
Customers' satisfaction is our prime objective as it is the foundation stone for the growth of
the company.

“Y-Marc” has earned trust and reputation in India by winning the customers’ confidence. A
very huge quantity of our cables has been in operation across India. The Organization is also
committed to comply with all applicable environment, health & safety legislations and all
other requirements of existing & prospective buyers.

We believe that our deeply ingrained value system has helped us to achieve a respectable
position amongst our Indian peers. Making products that are reliable and intuitive is not our
only goal, in addition to usability; we strive to create accessibility, convenience and
credibility. We aim to retain our image of an organisation serving as an epitome of being
reliable and efficient, our commitment and customer-centric approach have helped us
to understand our customers in a better way and thus has guided us to serve their diverse
needs and wants.

We are committed to deliver consistently through dedicated customer support and offices
located across India. “V-Marc” is there for you, whenever and wherever.....

We manufacture various types of exceptional quality wires & cables in Single & Multi-core
with Copper/Aluminium Conductors, having XLPE/PVC insulation, Flat Cables, Co-axial
Cables, LAN Cables, LT Power/Control Cable, Medium Voltage Covered Conductors, HT
Cables and Specialty Cables. Our range of wires & cables possess properties of FR, HRFR,
FRLS, HFFR etc. all these cater specific needs of clients and meet all necessary quality
standards.

“V-Marc” has earned the trust and reputation in INDIA by winning the customers’ confidence.

XLPE / PVC Cables from “V-Marc” are a preferred choice in Power Plants, Distribution
Systems, Heavy Industries, and various Utilities. The organization is also committed to
comply with all the applicable environmental, health & safety legislations and all other
requirements of prospective buyers. We are poised for a massive enhancement both in quality
& quantity. Our commitment to the nation is to produce the best in quality and thereby
achieve satisfaction of customers. We will ensure awareness among employees, society,
interested parties about environment protection, minimization of waste, conservation of
energy, water and other natural resources.
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In an ongoing process to improve Customer Satisfaction “V-Marc” offers a variety of services:

Reliable & consistent quality.

Consistently timely deliveries.

Commercially competitive prices.

Product development & enrichment as demanded by the changing markets.

A targeted stock policy.

Technical Support for cable applications / cables cost optimization for projects etc.
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History

Our MD, the first generation entrepreneur Shri Vikas Garg Ji had a very humble inception in 1996
with the manufacturing of house wiring cables, the simplest product of wires & cable industry.
Good quality, optimal pricing & consistently timely deliveries helped us in winning trust of
buyers. We established and thus the demand for our products increased multi fold. We established
our factory at SIDCUL Haridwar in 2006 and named it Asian Wires & Cables Industries. We
enhanced our product range by adding LT PVC & XLPE cables in 2009. In 2012 we put up a new
plant & added Aerial Bunched Cables to our product range. In 2014 this company got
incorporated as Asian Galaxy Pvt Ltd. In 2017, we further added another factory to manufacture
HT cables up till 33kV.

In April 2021, we launched our IPO & became a public limited company. Inspite of the low
sentiments in the pandemic stricken market our IPO had an overwhelming response and the issue
was successfully subscribed.

Now, in the year 2022, we are in the process of setting up the new plant and also to introduce a
new product line of higher voltage upto & including 110KV
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NEW PLANT SETUP
FO . ED Setup New Plant along with
.Started. with 2 product new product line i.e. LT Aerial
line & Vibrant work force Bunched Cables
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MEGA EXPANSION
PLAN

New Plant Setup & also to
introduce new product line of
higher voltage upto & Including
110KV,

33KVPLANT SETUP

Introduced High Voltage Cables
upto & including 33KV

2016

—{ldi

2012

LOWER VOLTAGE
XLPE CABLES

Introduced New product
line i.e. LT XLPE Cables

NPC 1* PRIZE WINNER

MSME Unit of the Year 2015-2016
awarded by NPC under Make In

2022
200+ CRORE

Turnover crossed 200+ Cr

India.
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We are steered by the foresight and wisdom of
Mr. Vikas Garg the vision of becoming a pioneer
in the wiring cable industry. His directions have
enabled us in going well in the industry, the
enterprise too has a strong goodwillinthe market
in particular has all the facilities from production
to packaging. Other than production, we layout
strong focus on the market research, which is
done to make better decision in development
and marketing. Our extensive market research
indicates the needs and requirement in the
market V-MARC is globally approved and
recognized by leading consultants, architects,
engineer and electrical contractors.
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What was once thought of as science fiction is
now a reality. Today technology has transformed
our lives. Today we are surrounded by
innumerable devices that perform many of our
daily tasks, more efficiently and more
productively to enable us tolead a great life.
Every product is designed to deliver peak
performance at all times while ensuring
complete safety and every product is ideally
suited for smart homes, smart offices and smart
buildings of now and the future.

Our wide range of products is a perfect
combination of futuristic technology, electrical
ingenuity and splendid aesthetics.
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Ultra Flexible Flame Retardant Cables Upto 1100 V
Insulation : PVC : FR 70°C

Range : 1.00 t0 6.00 sg. mm

Conductor : Pure Electrolytic Grade Annealed Bare
Copper with more than 100% Conductivity.
Specifications : 15-694:2010 C1 Category, 1S-8130 & IS-5831 4'

FR MULTISTRAND CABLES

0

Flame Retardant Cables upto 1100 Volts
Insulation : PVC : FR 70°C
Range : 0.50 to 400 sg. mm

Specifications : 15-694:2010 C1 Category, 15-8130 & 15-5831

*No over Heating or Melting.

y

Conductor : Pure Electrolytic Grade Annealed Bare Copper with more than 100% Conductivity. f

4
£

< g\ FRLS MULTISTRAND CABLES O

Flame Retardant Low Smoke Cables Upto 1100 V

*Special Flame Retardant Low Smoke With Reduced Halogen.  *Higher Current Rating.

*Higher Temperature Rating. Insulation : PVC : LF + FR-LSH 70°C Range : 1.00 to 6.00 sq. mm
Conductor : Pure Electrolytic Grade Annealed Bare Gopper with more than 100% Conductivity.
Specifications : 15-694:2010 C1 Category, IS-8130 & IS-5831 p

/
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Zero Halogen Free Flame Retardant Cables upto 1100 V

* Does Not Catch Flames, Does Not Propagate Fire.

* Non Toxic, Non-Corrosive.

Insulation : ZHFR (Zero Halogen Flame Retardant)

Range : 1.00 to 6.00 Sq.mm

Conductor : Pure Electrolytic Grade Annealed Bare Copper with more than
100% Conductivity.

Specifications : 1S 694, IEC 60332-1 & 3,IEC 60754-1 & 2, IS 8130. y

;aﬁf ZHFR MULTISTRAND CABLES O @
Wl
&

XLPE/PVC 3 CORE FLAT Cables

Long life even in Rugged Condition.

Insulation : PVC/XLPE

Range : Upto 95.00 Sg. mm.

Conductor : EC Grade Flexible Copper Conductor.
Sheath : PVC ST 1/HR ST 2.

Specifications : IS 694 & Generally as per IS 7098 (P-1)

PVR ROUND FLEXIBLE &
CONTROL Cables

Insulation : PVC/FR PVC/HR PVC
Range : Single Core upto 630 Sq. mm, 4 Core

A . upto 300 Sg. mm, 61 Core upto 2.50 Sg. mm.

Conductor ; EC Grade Solid, Strandard & Flexible Copper Condugtor.
Voltage Grade : 450/ 750/ 1100V
Specifications : 1S 694, 1S 1554(P-1), 1S 8130 & IS 5831
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LT / HT POWER Cables

* Higher Rating of Current and short circuits.
* Thermosetting nature
*Insulation resistance is 100 times more than PVC cables
*High moisture resistance
Range : LT Single Core (Upto 1000 Sq. mm)

LT Multicore ( Upto 630 Sq. mm)

HT Single & Multicore (Upto 1000 Sq. mm)
Specification : 1S-1554(P-1), 7098 (P-1), 7098 (P-2)

LT/ HT XLPE AERIAL BUNCHED Cables

Insulation : XLPE (Cross Linked Polyethylene)

PE (Polyethylene)

Range : Upto 185 Sq.mm Bare / Insulated Messenger.
Conductor : EC Grade Aluminium Conductor.

All Aluminum Alloy Messenger Gonductor
Specifications : 1S-14255, 1S-8130, 1S-398 (P-1V)

CCTV CABLES

* High Quality & Reliable Transmission of Voice, Video & Data.
* Highly Shock Proof & Durable.

Range : CCTV3 +1, CCTV4+1

Conductor : Flexible Bare Copper
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LAN Cables

LI

CAT 5e & CAT 6 Date Cables

* Low Attenuation

Conductor : Solid Annealed Bare Copper.
Specification : EN-50173, IEC-11801 & TIA/EIA 568 B-2.

7 COAXIAL Cables

* High Quality Co-Axial Cable for TV Network.

* Low Attenuation Value.  * Low Loss in Signal Quality
* High Band Width * LongLife

Range : RG-6,RG-11, RG-59.

Conductor : Solid Annealed Bare Copper.

DC SOLAR Cables q-‘
L

Conforming to IS-694, 1S-8130 & 1S-5831

Conductor : EC Grade Annealed Tinned Copper Conductor

as per Class -5 of IS-8130

Insulation : PVC Type - C (HR) as per 1S-5831/1984 )
Sheath: UV Grade PVC ST-2 as per IS-5831/1984 4
Range : From 2.50 Sg. mm to 10.00 Sg. mm /

15
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Registration Authority

Corporate Identity Number

Udyog AADHAR / MSME

National Small Scale Industries Ltd.

Factory License

PAN NO.

GSTNO

ESINO.

PFNO.

IMPORT/EXPORT CODE

Bureau of Indian Standard

15:694/1990

I5:1554/Pt-1/1988

[5:7098/Pt-1/1988

[5:7098/Pt-11/2011

[5:14255/1995

15398/PT-2

IS0 Certification

Uttrakhand Pollution Control Board

(PRI Test Report {IS: 7098(Part -1) 1988} - 1.1Kv
(PRI Test Report {IS: 7098(Part -2) 2011} — 11Kv
(PRI Test Report {IS: 1554(Part -1) 1988} - 1.1Kv
(PRI Test Report {IS: 14255, 1995} — 1.1Kv
Rajasthan Test House {IS: 7098(Part -2) 2011} 33Kv
National Productivity Council

International Quality Systems

Registration No.

U31908UR2014PTC001066
UK06B0000675
NSIC/DDN/GP/034/2008
HWR-615

AAMCA4908L

05 AAMCA4908L12G
61000075010000304
UK-36377

IECNO.6107000747

CM/L-8907801
(M/L-2539158
(M/L-2539360
(M/1-8300020394
(M/L-8990006

(M/--8300101798

150 9001-2015 & 150 14001-2015

PCB ID - 16535
CPRIRTLCL2015T114
CPRIRTLCL2015T149
(PRINOACAB19T0152
(PRINOACAB19T0097

ULR-TC507319000000098F

"1st Prize" Award Winner MSME Unit for year 2015-2016

Lean Manufacturing Competitive Scheme

14/3/2014

18.11.2018
01/01/201

04/03/2014

04/08/2008
01/01/2010

10/09/2007

21/01/2001
30/11/2020
30/11/2020
07/04/2020
31/01/2021
05/11/2020
14/06/2011
30/08/2019
29/02/2016
29/12/2015
05/08/2019
20/06/2019

08/02/2019
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List of Customers

SAIL PLANT SAIL-Bhilai Steel Plant.
SAIL-IISCO Plant Burnpur
SAIL- Bokaro Steel Plant
SAIL-Durgapur Steel Plant
SAIL- Rourkela Steel Plant
SAIL-Alloy Steels Plant
SAIL -Salem Steel Plant

SAIL MINES SAIL Iron Ore Mines - Meghahatuburu (MIOM)
SAIL Barsua Iron Mines (BIM)
SAIL Kalta Iron Mines(KIM)

SAIL Bolani Iron Mines(BOM)
GAIL Gail India Ltd VijayPur Guna (MP)
NTPC NTPC Badarpur

NTPC Dadri

NTPC Rihand

NTPC Vindhyachal Super Thermal Power

Panipat Thermal Power Station Panipat

NTPC SAIL NSPCL (Joint Venture of NTPC & SAIL)
BPSCL BPSCL (Joint Venture of SAIL & DVC)
BHEL BHEL Hyderabad
BHEL Bhopal
IOCL IOCL Noida, Paradip, Balasore, Haldia, ,Budge-Budge,
ONGC ONGC Nagira Assam
COAL FIELD Western Coal Field Maijri Area

Western Coal Field Nagpur Area
Western Coal Field Kanan Area
Western Coal Field Pench Area
Western Coal Field Nagpur Area

South Eastern Coal Field Gevra Area

POWER GRID Power Grid Corp India Ltd Shillong, Misa, Silchar

20
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ATOMIC ENERGY/NUCLEAR POWER

NHPC

RAILWAY ELECTRIFICATION

INDIAN RAILWAY

ELECTCITY BOARD

ATOMIC ENERGY Heavy water Plant Manuguru,

Nuclear Power Corporation Marmora
NHPC Surangani Chamba

Railway Electrification Lucknow
Railway Electrification Bhubaneswar.
Railway Electrification Danapur
Railway Electrification Allahabad

Southern Railway Chennai.

North Railway  New Delhi,

North Central Railway Allahabad

Diesel Loco Modernization Work Patiala
Northwestern Railway Jaipur

NE Railway Gorakhapur

East Central Railway Haijipur.

West Central Railway Jabalpur.
Western Railway Mumbai

Central Railway Mumbai

Southern Railway Chennai

Southwestern Railway Hubli

UPCL Dehradun Uttrakhand
CSPDCL Raipur Chhattisgarh
MPPKVVCL Jabalpur (MP)
MPMKVVCL Bhopal (MP)

MP PPKVVCL Indore (MP)
MVVNL Lucknow (UP)
PUVVNL Varanasi (UP)
PVVNL Meerut (UP)

DVVNL Agra ( UP)

UHBVNL Puchkula

DHBVNL Hisar

PSEB Patiala

JSEB Ranchi

Kanpur Electricity Supply Co (KESCo)

21




AIR FORCE

MES

IRCON

PWD

MTNL/BSNL

PORT TRUST

PROJECTS

CESU Odisha
HPSEB Shimla
JSEB Ranchi

AVVNL Ajmer

34 Wing, Air Force Station Bhatinda

MES, Southern Commmand

MES, Lucknow, Bariley, Allahabad, Jaipur Zone

MES Jaipur, Jabalpur,
MES Eastern Command.

IRCON International Limited Delhi

UP PWD Lucknow,

MP PWD Bhopal
UTTRAKHAND PWD Dehradun
DELHI PWD Delhi

Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Ltd. Delhi
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. Jodhpur
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. Jalandhar
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. Udaipur
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. Bikaner
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. Shillong
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. New Delhi

Vishakhapatnam Port Trust

M/s Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd.
M/s NCC Limited

M/s Tata Projects Ltd.

M/s Transrail Limited

M/s. Jaksons Limited

ITI Limited GSM Project Raipur

22
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Jammu & Kashmir

Himachal Pradesh

Punjab

Haryana o

Delhi o

Rajasthan o

Gujarat m

Madhya Pradesh ©

Maharashtra

Karnataka
Kerala

Uttarakhand

o Uttar Pradesh

ihar

West bengal

> Jharkhand

, Chhattisgarh

Odisha

Tamil Nadu
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Corporate Information
Board of Directors
Mr. Vikas Garg Managing Director
Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan* Additional Director (Executive & Non-
Independent)
Mr. Mukesh Bansal Independent Director
Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director
Mrs.Meenakshi Garg Non -Executive Director

*Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is appointed as Additional Director (Executive & Non-Independent)
w.e.f26.02.2022.
*Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava resigned from the post of Whole-Time director w.e.f 23.02.2022

Management Team

Mr. Gyan Prakash Sharma
Mr. Neeraj Kumar Khatod
Mr. Qurban Ahmad Khan

Mr. Vijay Bhatt

Mr. Suresh Chandra Chandola
Mr. Shiv Kishore Rai

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Sawarna
Statutory Auditor

Rajeev Singal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh

Secretarial Auditor

Ashish Sehrawat & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries
Delhi

Email Id & Website

Legal Head & Vice President
(Commercial & Business Development)
Zonal Manager (Sales & Marketing)
Regional Manager (Sales & Marketing)
General Manager (Sales & Marketing)
General Manager (Quality & Controls)
General Manager (Production & Planning)

Company Secretary

Ms. Kanchan Gupta

Internal Auditor

K P AD & Associates

Practicing Chartered Accountants,Roorkee
Uttarakhand

Cost Auditor

Ahuja Sunny & Associates
Cost Accountants,
Delhi

Plant Locations

24



v

V-MANRC..

For Investor-investor(@v-marc.in, cs@v-marc.in 1) Plot No.3, 4, 18 & 20A Sector-1IDC,
SIDCUL, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249403

For Others - agpl@v-marc.in 2) Plot No. 15, Sector-, SIDCUL,
Website- www.v-marc.com Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249403

Bigshare Services Private Limited
Pinnacle Business Park Office No S6-2, 6th, Mahakali Caves Rd, next to Ahura Centre, Andheri
East, Mumbai, 400093
Tel No - +91-022-62638200, Fax No- +91-022-62638299, Email-info@bigshareonline.com

Plot No.3, 4, 18 & 20A,Sector-1IDC, SIDCUL, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249403, India, Tel No-
+91-01334-239638

(1) Uttar Pradesh (2) Bihar (3) Jharkhand (4) Madhya Pradesh (5) Orissa

1.Punjab National Bank 2.Indusind Bank
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MESSAGE FROM THE DESK OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders

Challenges are an inevitable part of business. It is how we respond to them that makes the
difference. For V-Marc India Limited challenges are not something new. We are witnessing
change at an unprecedented speed and scale as well as complexity all around us. As the push
towards a more connected world gets stronger, new opportunities for growth and innovation are
opening up, and bringing in their new challenge.

FY 2021-22 has been a challenging year. The Indian economy, that was already passing through a
rough phase due to liquidity crisis, high oil prices and weak consumer sentiments, Covid — 19
pandemic second wave was faced with another bigger challenge. It has triggered an unprecedented
social and economic crisis whose impact will linger for some time as the global economy faces an
eminent recession. Despite this, it is fascinating to witness how the world has united to fight this
crisis resiliently while quickly adopting to the new normal. It gives us hope that human race shall
prevail as done in many such crises across history. One thing is for sure that the post pandemic
world will never be the same again. While there will be multitude to changes, digitalization is an
area that will witness accelerated adoption.

The COVID-19 pandemic occasioned a rethink at V-Marc. Realising the immense potential of our
brand, we reaffirmed our commitment to unlock greater value for our stakeholders. This led to the
formulation of our growth strategy, a multi-year transformation drive under Project Leap, which is
aimed at building resilience and fuelling V-Marc’s growth. Walking on this set roadmap, we will
not only strengthen our leadership in the B2B space, but also transition to a leading B2C player
and secure our place among the top Ten players in the Fast-Moving Electrical Goods (FMEG)
segment in the country.

Year Under Review

During the year, we achieved the milestone of Rs. 181.00 Crores top line despite challenges from
various fronts. Our Wires & Cable business witnessed robust growth that resulted from our strong
emphasis on execution and on reinforcing our core strengths by investing in expanding the
distribution network. The year saw surging input costs and supply side constraints. But we
mitigated the situation through regulated pricing actions, improved product mix and cost
optimisation initiatives. Our efforts at widening our distribution network are bringing tangible
gains. So are our measures to improve the brand architecture and augmenting the influencer
management programme.
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A core strategy has been in implementation to focus on growing our retail segment while gradually
reducing the contribution of EPC projects to the overall sales mix. This strategy is being adopted
as the retail segment offers superior growth prospects with better margins and lower working
capital requirements. We remain committed to aggressively pursuing this strategy to build a
stronger and more sustainable business that creates lasting value for all our stakeholders.

Strategy for the future

The future is a connected world. It has immense potential for development and alleviating the
challenges of traditional world. We have already witnessed its game changing power in the times
of COVID-19 when the world was restricted to homes. In line with this, your Company will
continue to retain its focus on connectivity cables i.e., telecom, and power cables. Orders in these
segments largely originate from government tenders and PSU organizations. Our strong
relationships, focus on quality, prequalification criteria and cost competitiveness will enable us to
capitalize on the opportunity. We are increasingly witnessing a scenario where China is losing its
place as the manufacturer to the world after the pandemic incident. This presents a significant
opportunity for Indian companies like us to step up and target the export markets. Another
important focus for us will be to diversify our customer base from existing institutional customers.
We have already strengthened retail focus in select micro markets to develop a strong dealer and
distributor network for House Wires and Power Cables. This will help us to enhance granularity in
revenue sources thus reducing dependence on single large account.

As you all know that company has already announced the setup of new plant for the capacity
enhancement and more particularly for installing the CCV Line which is a dry curing method
machine. Once this new project comes under commercial production your company will be able to
produce the higher rating HT cables like 33 KVA and 66 KVA. Your company would be able to
participate in almost all the tender floated by all the state Government Electricity Board as well as
all the central government PSU like NTPC, NHPC, .

Outlook

Our goal is to achieve 50% of revenue from the retail segment in the next 2-3 years by growing it
at 30-35% per annum. In line with this objective, we are strengthening the business enablers
including mapping our retailers, expanding our distribution network, and enhancing our brand
connect. Moreover, we have recruited additional marketing people on a Pan-India basis to enable
the retail segment to take a more prominent role in our Company. These marketing resources have
significant experience in the electrical and Fast-Moving Electrical Goods (FMEG) categories. As
we seek to enter the FMEG sector once our retail segment reaches a certain scale, this in-house
talent will prove valuable in this regard.
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Our well-spread distribution network has been our driving force in reaching out to different parts
of the country. We have set an ambitious target of growing our distribution network to 1,00,000
retail touchpoints by connecting with 500 distributors each reaching out to around 200 retailers.
Our continued investments in brand building and channel partner engagement will help us augment
our market reach and connect. Government’s continued strong focus on infrastructure
development, rural electrification and affordable housing also augur well for the wires and cables
industry. Moreover, rapidly growing urbanization, increasing disposable incomes and changing
preferences are driving the adoption of consumer electrical goods among Indian households.

Our concerted drive across several aspects, be it product innovation, supply chain integration, cost
optimisation and others have strengthened our market position across businesses. Although the
economic environment remains fraught, given the recent challenges caused by the pandemic, the
long-term growth opportunities remain favourable for us. Rising incomes and changes in customer
behaviour have resulted in growing customer preference for sustainable products and brands that
guarantee quality. This has contributed to the expansion of organised players like us. For us,
growth has never been about numbers.

As a responsible corporate leader, we have remained aware of our social responsibilities and have
delivered on them by creating opportunities for the socially disadvantaged. We will continue to
promote this social objective while endeavouring to deliver value to our other stakeholders by
growing responsibly.

A robust cash generation ability and a strong balance sheet have sustained us through the business
cycles. I hope our growth strategy, encapsulated in Project Leap, will help us realise our long-term
aspirations. We continue to focus on Environment Social and Governance (ESG) priorities. The
efficient use of water and energy from cleaner sources and zero tolerance for fatalities at our
facilities continue to be our primary focus areas.

Looking ahead I would like to thank all our stakeholders, including customers, investors, business
partners, and employees, for their continued trust and support. We look forward to another year of
triumphant performance, supported by our unrelenting pursuit of excellence.

Sd/-
Vikas Garg

Managing Director

28
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Mr. Vikas Garg

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan

3

Mr. Mukesh Bansal

Board of Directors

Managing Director

Having experience of more than 2 decades in the field
of electric cables & wire industry. Responsible for
overlooking the technical operations, strategy and
marketing plans of the company. He holds a degree of
Masters of Business Administration (MBA) in
Marketing.

Additional-Executive Director

He is a Chartered Accountant by Profession and has
Twenty-three (23) years of post-qualification experience
in financial management, corporate accounting, costing
& information system and Audit Aspects. He has worked
as a management consultant to the Corporates and other
MSME companies. Advising these companies in the
field of Accounting, Management Information System,
Implementation of ERP, Taxation Matters and Funding.

Independent Director

He is a Practising CA since 1997 with over 21 years of
experience in auditing, taxation, business & management
consulting. He holds degree of chartered Accountancy,
Company Secretary and has also passed diploma in
system Audit (DISA). He has also served secretary and
chairman of CIRC of ICAI in the past.
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Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey

Mrs. Meenakshi Garg

Independent Director

He is a Company Secretary (CS) by Profession. He is
having experience of more than 12 years in the
corporates. He was associated with Patanjali Food &
Herbal Park Private Limited for around 10 years in
leadership roles in establishing the Mega Food Park,
Scheme of ministry of Food Processing Industries.

Non-Executive Director

She is Associated with the company for last 10 years.
Holds Bachelor of commerce degree from Delhi
University and has an experience of more than a decade
in the Industry of Wires and Cables.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Company’s Directors are pleased to present the Ninth Annual Report of V-Marc India
Limited, along with Audited Financial Statements, for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The operating results of the Company for the year under review are as follows:
(‘Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Revenue 18,197.06 17,549.99
Profits/(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax 904.84 981.96
Less: Depreciation 257.50 188.68
Less: Tax Expense 148.12 213.93
Prior period items-(income)/expenses - -
Net profit for the period 499.22 579.34
Less: Utilized for Dividend Issue 0 0
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 499.22 579.34
Earnings Per Share 2.19 3.45

NAME OF THE COMPANY

Prior to listing, Company was private limited known as Asian Galaxy Private Limited. Your
Company has changed the name from Asian Galaxy Private Limited to “V-Marc India Private
Limited” which was later on converted into Public Limited “V-Marc India Limited” vide dated
February 04, 2021.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER
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The Shares of the company were listed on 9th April, 2021 on NSE (EMERGE). The Company has
received approval vide NSE/LIST/1009 dated 8thApril, 2021 from National Stock Exchange
(NSE) for the listing of 22,785,696 equity shares on NSE (EMERGE) platform w.e.f. 9th April,
2021.The Company has undertaken in consultation with the BRLM, a private placement of
8,40,000 Equity Shares for cash consideration aggregating Rs. 327.60 Lakhs (“Pre IPO-
Placement™).

The 2,27,85,696 equity shares of V-Marc India Limited was listed on the NSE (EMERGE)
Platform w.e.f 9 April, 2021 which included fresh issue of 60,00,000 equity shares in the IPO.

Your Company has successfully concluded the public issue of equity shares during the year 2021-
22 aggregating to * 23.40 Crores.

Means of finance for the objects of IPO are as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs. in lacs)
Proceeds from the fresh issue (A) 2340.00
Proceeds from Pre-IPO placement (B) 327.60
Total 2667.60

Utilization of the Proceeds of the Issue
The amount raised through the IPO has been fully utilized as per the Objects of the Issue.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company has been increased from INR 20,00,00,000
(Rs.Twenty Crores Only) divided into 20,000,000 (Two Crore) Equity shares of INR 10 each to
INR 25,00,00,000 (Rs.Twenty Five Crores Only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty
Lakhs ) Equity Shares of INR 10 each during the year 2020-21

The paid-up Share Capital of the Company has been increased from INR 15,94,56,960 divided into
1,59.45,696 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to INR 16,78,56,960 divided into 1,67,85,696 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each by way of issue of 8,40,000/- equity shares as Preferential Allotment of
Private Placement of Shares to Mr. Madhukar Chimanlal Sheth, during the financial year 2020-21.

. Disclosure regarding issues of equity shares without differential rights:

The Company has made a fresh issue of 60,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each without
differential rights through public issue of shares during the period under review.

. Disclosure regarding issues of equity shares with differential rights:
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The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the period under
review.

. Disclosure regarding issues of employee stock options:

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees during the period
under review.

. Disclosure regarding the issues of sweat equity shares:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the period under review.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The Net Sales of the Company increased by 3.36% to Rs.18,101.73 Lacs in financial year 2021-22
from Rs.17,513.09 Lacs in financial year 2020-21 The Company has posted Operating Profits
(EBITDA) of Rs.1,558.65 Lacs in financial year 2021-22. The Company posted Profit after Tax
(PAT) of Rs.499.22 Lacs in the current financial year as against a PAT of Rs.579.34 Lacs in the
previous financial year; an decrease of 13.83%.

A detailed analysis of Company’s operations in terms of performance in markets, business outlook,

risks and concerns forms part of the Management Discussion and Analysis, a separate section of
this Annual Report.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Company continued to focus on enhancing the capability of the
organization and towards the achievement of this goal, the Company has been taking a number of
initiatives.

DIVIDENDS

Considering the future growth aspects for the company no dividend has been recommended by the
Company for the year ended 31% March, 2022.

The Company is also not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) during the year

RESERVES

The Company during the year transferred Rs.499.22 Lacs to the general reserves. Post transfer, the
general reserves stood at Rs.4,653.48 Lacs for year ended 31stMarch, 2022.

LISTING
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The equity shares of your Company got listed at the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
(EMERGE) w.e.f 9 April, 2021 and in dematerialized form. The ISIN No. of the Company is
INEOGXKO01018.

The Company has paid the requisite listing fee to the Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2021-
22.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

1. Mr. Mayank Vashist, a qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out the
Reconciliation of Share Capital of Quarter ended 30™ June, 2021.

2. Mr. Sanchit Sharma, a qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out the
Reconciliation of Share Capital of Quarter ended 30" September, 2021 & 31 December,
2021.

3. Mr. Rohit Gupta, a qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out the Reconciliation
of Share Capital of Quarter ended 31 March, 2022

Reconciliation of the total listed and paid-up share capital held with the National Security
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) was done on
quarterly basis as stipulated by the SEBI Regulations.

The Audit is carried out Quarterly basis in a year and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock
Exchange. The report, inter alia, confirms that the total listed and paid-up share capital of the
Company is in agreement with the aggregate of the total dematerialized shares and those in
physical mode.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

As on March 31, 2022, all Equity Shares of the Company are held in dematerialized form. The
breakup of the equity shares held in dematerialized and physical form as on March 31, 2022 are as
follows:

Mode Record Percentage Shares % To Capital
NSDL 213 42.43 38.28,000 16.80
CDSL 289 57.57 1,89.57,696 83.20
Physcial 0 0.00 0 0.00
Total 502 100.00 | 2,27,85,696 100.00

The Company ISIN No. is INEOGXKO01018 and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent is
BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED.
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Share holding pattern and Distribution of Shareholdings as on 31stMarch, 2022.

(1) Shareholding Pattern:

% of
S.No. | Category No. of Shares Held | Shareholding

1 Promoters & Promoter Group 1,59.41.696 69.96
2 Mutual Fund - -
3 Banks, FIs, Insurance companies - -
4 Private Bodies Corporate 6,000 0.03
5 Clearing Members 1,68,000 0.74
6 Non-Resident Indians 4,08,000 1.79
7 Indian Public 61,75,000 27.10
8 HUF 87,000 0.38

Total 2,27,85,696 100.00

(i1) High And Low Prices of Shares with NSE Emerge:

NSE Emerge (SME Platform)
V-Marec India Limited
S.No. | Month & Year High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
1 April, 2021 49.25 38.05
2 May, 2021 42.20 29.55
3 June, 2021 38.25 30.25
4 July, 2021 37.50 25.35
5 Aug,2021 37.70 30.10
6 Sep, 2021 35.20 32.10
7 Oct, 2021 42.00 33.10
8 Nov, 2021 36.30 29.15
9 Dec, 2021 46.90 29.50
10 Jan, 2022 51.70 36.50
11 Feb, 2022 52.80 32.40
12 Mar, 2022 41.85 35.50

Investors / Shareholders Correspondence
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Investors / Shareholders may Correspondence with the company at the Registered Office of
the company at:

Plot No. 3, 4, 18 & 20A, Sector-IIDC, SIDCUL, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249403

Contact No. 01334-239638

Email id: cs@v-marc.in & investor@v-marc.in

WEB ADDRESS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
The copy of Annual Return for the year ending on March 31, 2022 will be available on the
Website of the Company ww.v-marc.com.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report as required under regulation 34 and Schedule V
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discloser Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms and integral
part of this report and provides overview of the business and operations of the Company as per
“Annexure A”

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION AND SITTING FEES

Member’s attention is drawn to Financial Statements wherein the disclosure of remuneration paid
to Directors is given during the year 2021-22. The remuneration and Sitting fees paid to Directors
will be mentioned Annual return.

CREDIT RATING

Your Company’s credit rating is maintained in investment grade to Ratings BBB- for long-term
bank facilities and A3 for short-term bank facilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company firmly believes that Corporate Governance and compliance practices are of
paramount importance in order to maintain the trust and confidence of the stakeholders, clients,
and the good reputation of the Company and the unquestioned integrity of all personnel involved
with the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) 2015, compliance of Corporate Governance is not mandatory. However,
the company has complied with the provisions of Regulation 17 to 27 of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent
possible.
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The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of highest levels of
transparency, accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations and in all interactions with its
stakeholders, including shareholders, employees, the government and lenders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and vision to the
management and supervises the functioning of the Company. In terms of the Company’s Corporate
Governance Policy, all statutory and other significant and material information are placed before
Board to enable it to discharge its responsibilities of strategic supervision of the Company as
Trustees of stakeholders.

Details of Composition of Board as on March 31, 2022 are given below:-

Name of Directorship | Membership | Chairman
the Date of in other of of
S.No. | Director* | Category Appointment | Companies# | Committee@ | Committee
Vikas Managing
1 Garg Director 04-02-2021 2 2 0
Additional
Director-
Aloak Executive
Kumar & Non-
2 Tulsiyan | Independent 26-02-2022 0 2 1
Mukesh Independent
3 Bansal Director 04-02-2021 0 2 1
Raj
Kumar Independent
4 Pandey Director 04-02-2021 0 3 1
Non-
Meenakshi | Executive
5 Garg Director 04-02-2021 2 2 1

*Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is appointed as Additional Director (Executive & Non-Independent)

w.e.£26.02.2022.
*Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava resigned from the post of Whole-Time director w.e.f 23.02.2022

#Includes Private Companies but excludes Limited Liability Partnership, Foreign Companies,
Section 8 Companies & Alternate Directorship.

@includes Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination and remuneration
Committee and CSR Committee only, of all companies including this company.

Note: None of the Directors of the Company are directors in any other listed Company

Note: None of the Director is a member of more than 10 committees or acting as Chairman of
more than 5 committees across all companies in which he is a director.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the period under review, the Board of Directors met Sixteen (16) times in respect of which
proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in
the Minutes book kept by the Company for the purpose.

S.No. Type of Meeting Date
1 Board Meeting No.1 [2021-22] 06-04-2021
2 Board Meeting No.2 [2021-22] 07-04-2021
3 Board Meeting No.3 [2021-22] 13-04-2021
4 Board Meeting No.4 [2021-22] 31-05-2021
5 Board Meeting No.5 [2021-22] 18-06-2021
6 Board Meeting No.6 [2021-22] 05-07-2021
7 Board Meeting No.7 [2021-22] 06-07-2021
8 Board Meeting No.8 [2021-22] 21-08-2021
9 Board Meeting No.9 [2021-22] 31-08-2021
10 Board Meeting No.10 [2021-22] 27-10-2021
11 Board Meeting No.11 [2021-22] 09-11-2021
12 Board Meeting No.12 [2021-22] 12-11-2021
13 Board Meeting No.13 [2021-22] 07-12-2021
14 Board Meeting No.14 [2021-22] 01-02-2022
15 Board Meeting No.15 [2021-22] 26-02-2022
16 Board Meeting No.16 [2021-22] 30-03-2022

NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED BY EACH DIRECTOR

No.

Sr. | Name of the Director Total No. of

Board
Meetings held
in the FY

Total No. of the
Board Meetings
attended

Attendance at the
last AGM held on
29t September,
2021
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during the
Tenure of the
Director
1. | Mr. Vikas Garg 16 16 Yes
2. | Mrs. Meenakshi Garg 16 16 Yes
3. | Mr. Sandeep Kumar 13 13 Yes
Srivastava*®
4. | Mr. Mukesh Bansal 16 14 Yes
5. | Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey 16 16 Yes
6. | Mr. Aloak Kumar 1 1 Not applicable
Tulsiyan

*Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is appointed as Additional Director (Executive & Non-Independent)
w.e.f26.02.2022.
*Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava resigned from the post of Whole-Time director w.e.f 23.02.2022

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

The details of General Meetings of the Company held in last 3 years are as under:

Meetings | F.Y Date Time Venue
AGM 2018-19 28-09-2018 11:00 AM Registered Office
EGM 2018-19 22-02-2019 11:00 AM Registered Office
EGM 2019-20 28-04-2019 11:00 AM Registered Office
AGM 2019-20 30-09-2019 05:00 P.M Registered Office
EGM 2019-20 03-02-2020 11:00 AM Registered Office
AGM 2020-21 15-12-2020 11:30 AM Registered Office
EGM 2020-21 05-01-2021 11.00 AM Registered Office
EGM 2020-21 12-01-2021 11.00 AM Registered Office
EGM 2020-21 02-02-2021 10.30 A.M Registered Office
EGM 2020-21 05-02-2021 10.00 A.M Registered Office
EGM 2020-21 02-03-2021 11.00 AM Registered Office
Audio-Video
AGM 2021-22 29-09-2021 11:00 AM Conferencing
All the Directors attended the last Annual General Meeting
Details of special resolution passed in last three General Meetings:
S.No. | Particulars Date
1 Adoption Of New Set Of Articles Of Association 22-02-2019
2 Adoption Of New Set Of Memorandum Of Association 22-02-2019
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Authorising The Board To Borrow For Company’s Business
Upto A Limit Beyond Paid Up Capital And Free Reserves -
Special Resolution Under Section 180 (1) (C) Of The

3 Companies Act, 2013 (upto Rs. 250 Crores) 03-02-2020
To empower the board to borrow moneys (upto Rs.500
Crores) exceeding the prescribed limit under Section

4 180(1)(c). 15-12-2020
To empower the board to give loan, guarantee or provide
security in excess of the limit as prescribed under Section 186

5 (upto Rs.100 Crores) 15-12-2020
Increase in Authorized Share Capital from Rs.20 Crores to Rs.

6 25 Crores 05-01-2021
Change of name of the Company from Asian Galaxy Private

7 Limited to V-Marc India Private Limited 12-01-2021

8 Alteration in name clause of Memorandum of Association 12-01-2021

9 Alteration in name clause of Articles of Association 12-01-2021
Conversion from private ltd.company to public

10 Itd.company,alteration in name clause of MOA and and 02-02-2021

11 Alteration in name clause of MOA 02-02-2021

12 Alteration inobject clause of MOA 02-02-2021
Adoption of new set of AOA of the Company pursuant to the

13 Companies Act, 2013 and conversion to a Limited Company 02-02-2021

14 Appointment of Mr. Vikas Garg as Managing Director 05-02-2021
Appointment of Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava as Whole-

15 Time Director 05-02-2021

16 Authority for making Initial Public Offering (IPO) 05-02-2021
Special resolution for passing Proposal to issue equity shares
by way of Private Placement to Mr. Madhukar Chimanlal

17 Sheth 02-03-2021
Appointment of Mr. Mukesh Bansal as Independent Director
of the Company for a period of Five years from 04.02.2021 to

18 03.02.2026 29-09-2021
Appointment of Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey as Independent
Director of the Company for a period of Five years from

19 04.02.2021 to 03.02.2026 29-09-2021
Approval of Related Party Transactions with V-Marc

20 Electricals Private Limited for the F.Y 2021-22 29-09-2021
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Your Company regularly provides relevant information to the Stock Exchange as per the
requirements of the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015.
The quarterly, half-yearly and Annual financial results of the Company are published in
leading newspapers in India and uploaded with NSE Limited.

The results and official news are available on www.nseindia.com and the website of the

Company www.v-marc.com.

Your Company has posted all its Official News releases on its website.
No formal representations were made to Institutional Investors or Analysts during the year

under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors consists of five members, of which two are Independent Directors and one
is Woman Director.

During the year under review, The Following were the Composition of Board of Directors and
KMP as on March 31, 2022.

S.No. | Name of the Person Designation

1. Mr. Vikas Garg Managing Director

2. Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan Additional Director (Executive & Non-
Independent)

3. Mr. Mukesh Bansal Independent Director

4. Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director

3. Mrs. Meenakshi Garg Non-Executive Director

6. Mr. Ranjan Kumar Sawarna Chief Financial Officer

7. Ms. Kanchan Gupta Company Secretary

8. Mr. Suresh Chandra Chandola General Manager-Quality & Controls

9. Mr. Shiv Kishore Rai General Manager-Production & Plant

10. Mr. Gyan Prakash Sharma Vice President-Commercial & Business
Development

11. Mr. Neeraj Kumar Khatod Zonal Manager-Sales & Marketing

12. Mr. Vijay Bhatt General Manager-Sales & Marketing

13. Mr. Qurban Ahmad Khan Regional Manager-Sales & Marketing

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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The Company has received necessary disclosures from each of its three Independent Directors
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets all the criteria laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and there has been no change in the circumstances
which may affect their status as Independent Director during the year.

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company, other than the sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of

expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The current policy aims to have a mix of Independent and Executive Directors on its Board and to
separate out its functions of governance and management.

The policy of the Company on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters
provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 is appended as Annexure-B to this report.

The appointment of Directors and remuneration paid during the financial year 2021-22 is as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the terms laid down in policy of Nomination &
Remuneration policy of the Company.

TRAINING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Every new Independent Director of the Board attends an induction program. Every Senior-
Management Personnel makes a presentation to inductees about the Company’s strategy,
operations, product and market, finance, risk management.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Associations
of the Company, Mr. Vikas Garg, Managing Director is liable to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on 31% March, 2022, there are four Board committees namely:

a) Audit Committee,
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee and
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d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
A.) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The composition of Audit Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship
Mr.Mukesh Bansal Independent Director Chairman
Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director Member
Additional Director (Executive & Non-
Mr.Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan Independent) Member

TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:
e Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

e Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

e Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

e Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required being included in the Directors Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of Clause C of sub-section 3 of Section 134of
the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

¢) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions.
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g) Qualifications in the draft audit report.
e Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly and annual financial statements before
submission to the board for approval.

e Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purpose other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up
steps in this matter.

e Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors,adequacy of internal control systems.

e Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading
department,reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

e Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on.

e Reviewing the finding of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

e Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

e To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

e To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing.

e To overview the Vigil Mechanism of the Company and took appropriate actions in the
case of repeated frivolous complaints against any Director or Employee.

MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE
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During the Financial Year 2021-22, Six Meetings were held on 31/05/2021,
05/07/2021,21/08/2021,31/08/2021,12/11/2021 and 30/03/2022.

Mr. Mukesh Bansal is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Meetings Held

during the Tenure
Members Category of the Directors Meetings attended
Mr.Mukesh Bansal Independent Director 6 6
Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey | Independent Director 6 6

Additional Director

Mr.Aloak Kumar (Executive & Non-
Tulsiyan Independent) 1 1

B.) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 2015.

The composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship
Mr.Mukesh Bansal Independent Director Chairman

Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director Member

Mrs. Meenakshi Garg Non-Executive Director Member

TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

e To recommend to the Board, the remuneration packages of the Company’s,Managing/Joint
Managing/Whole time /Executive Directors, including all elements of remuneration
package (i.e., salary, benefits, bonuses, perquisites, commission, incentives, stock options,
pension, retirement benefits, details of fixed components and performances linked
incentives along with the performance criteria, service contracts. notice period, severance
fees, etc.);

e To be authorized at its duly constituted meeting to determine on behalf of the Board of
Directors and on behalf of the shareholders with agreed terms of reference, the Company’s
policy on specific remuneration packages for Company’s Managing/Joint Managing/Whole
time /Executive Directors, including pension rights and any compensation payment;
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Such other matters as May from time to time are required by any statutory, contractual or

other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such committee.

MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met One time during the Financial
year 2021-22 on 26/02/2022 as per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable provisions.

Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey is the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Meetings

Held during

the Tenure of
Members Category the Directors | Meetings attended
Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey | Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Mukesh Bansal Independent Director 1 1
Mrs. Meenakshi Garg | Non-Executive Director 1 1

C.) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. The composition of Stakeholder Relationship
Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship
Mrs.Meenakshi Garg Non-Executive Director Chairman

Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director Member

Mr.Vikas Garg Managing Director Member

TERMS OF REFERENCE:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee are as under:

Redressal of shareholders’/investor’s complaints;

Reviewing on a periodic basis the Approval of Transfer or transmission of shares,
debentures or any other securities made by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;

Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/ consolidation/renewal;
Non-receipt of declared dividends, balance sheets of the Company; and

Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Listing Compliances.
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MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Members of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee met One time during the Financial year
2021-22 on 22/03/2022 as per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable provisions.

Mrs. Meenakshi Garg is the Chairman of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

Meetings Held

during the

Tenure of the
Members Category Directors Meetings attended
Mrs.Meenakshi Garg Non-Executive Director 1 1
Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey | Independent Director 1 1
Mr.Vikas Garg Managing Director 1 1

D.) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship
Additional Director (Executive &

Mr.Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan Non-Independent) Chairman

Mr.Vikas Garg Managing Director Member

Mr.Raj Kumar Pandey Independent Director Member

MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE

The Members of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee met One time during the
Financial year 2021-22 on 22/03/2022 as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable provisions.

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is the Chairman of the CSR Committee.

Meetings Held

during the

Tenure of the
Members Category Directors Meetings attended
Mr.Aloak Kumar Additional Director
Tulsiyan (Executive & Non- 1 1
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Independent)
Mr.Vikas Garg Managing Director 1 1
Mr.Raj Kumar
Pandey Independent Director 1 1

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis are attached, which form
part of this report.

The Company has also complied with disclosing the required details on the website of the
company on www.v-marc.com which are as follows:

e Details of its business
e Composition of various Committees

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts or arrangements with related parties, entered into or modified during the Financial
year ended 31% March 2022, were on arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business.
Appropriate Approvals have been obtained wherever required by the Members or Board of
Directors of the Company.

Particulars of the Contract or Arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is appended as ANNEXURE-C to this
Report.

DEPOSITS

During the financial year 2021-22, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and other applicable laws and as such no amount of principal or interest
was outstanding as on date of the Balance Sheet.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS., GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The Company has not given any loan or guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN 31581 MARCH, 2022 AND THE DATE OF BOARD’S
REPORT

The material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company that have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the 2,27.85,696 equity shares of V-Marc
India Limited was listed on the NSE (EMERGE) Platform w.e.f 9" April, 2021 which included
fresh issue of 60,00,000 equity shares in the IPO.

Your Company has successfully concluded the pubic issue of equity shares during the year 2021-
22 aggregating to Rs.23.40 Crores.

The outbreak of corona virus (Covid-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The company is into the business of
manufacturing cable and wires. The company has evaluated impact of this pandemic on its
business operations. Based on the review and current indicators of future economic conditions, as
on current date, the Company has concluded that the impact of Covid-19 is material based on these
estimates. Due to the nature of pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to
identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board
comprising of 3 members, namely Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan (Chairman), Mr. Vikas Garg, Mr.
Raj Kumar Pandey, (Members). The Committee is responsible for formulating and monitoring the
CSR policy of the Company. Details about the CSR policy of the Company and initiatives taken by
the Company on CSR during the year are available on our website.

As per the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crores
or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crores or more or a net profit of rupees five crores or
more during any financial year shall spend in every financial year, at least two percent of the
average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial year, in
pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. Accordingly, our Company was required
to spend Rs. 14.56 Lacs on CSR activities during the year.

During the year under review, your company has spent Rs. 14.60 lacs towards corporate social
responsibility.

The annual report on CSR Activities is appended as Annexure-D to this Board Report.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the
Board and all employees in the course of day-to-day business operations of the Company. The
Company believes in “Zero Tolerance™ against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings /
behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to counter such acts. The Code
has been posted on the Company’s website i.e. www.v-marc.com.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism to deal with instances of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. The purpose of this mechanism is to provide a framework to report
concern about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of
Conduct or ethics policy and provide adequate safeguards against victimization of the person
availing this mechanism. This Policy has been appropriately communicated within the
organization and is effectively operational. The policy provides mechanism whereby whistle
blower may send protected disclosures directly to the Chairman of Audit Committee or Vigilance
Officer. The Policy is available on the website of the Company i.e. www.v-marc.com.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to
regulate dealing in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The
Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale
of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. The Policy is
available on the website of the Company i.e. www.v-marc.com.

All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the code.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company is working in an open environment and hence faces various types of risk.
Company has analyzed all the possible types of risk and has taken steps to cover as much as
possible if the tools of risk management are reasonably priced and available. Company has a clear
policy and management to cover the various risks.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
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We are focused to attract and retain talented skills and make them motivated through various skill-
development programmes. We provide quality workplace to our employees and provide platform
to develop and to grow.

The statement containing the names and other particulars of employees in accordance with section
197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules 5(1) & 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended as “Annexure-E” to the
Board Report.

One of the employee of the Company employed throughout the financial year was in receipt of
remuneration of Rs. 1.02 Cr or more, or employed for the part of the year and in receipt of Rs. 8.5
LACS or more a month under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure E to the Board Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The operational activity of the Company does not involve large energy consumption. In any case,
conservation of energy is considered to be a priority and therefore ensuring minimum consumption
by way of better energy conservation programs, training/ awareness of the employees, layout of
machines and prompt upkeep is a continuous exercise.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The Company is taking care of latest development and advancements in technology and all steps
are being taken to adopt the same.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Sr. | Particulars Foreign  Exchange | Foreign Exchange
No. Earning outgo
(Amount in ) (Amount in )
1 Purchase of Capital Goods NIL NIL
Total NIL
AUDITORS

M/s Rajeev Singal and Co., Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration No. 008692C were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of four Consecutive years at the 8t
Annual General Meeting of the Member held on September 29, 2021 on a remuneration
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors. As required under
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Regulation 33(d) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the Auditors have confirmed that they hold a
valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India.

AUDITORS REPORT

There was no observation or qualification in the Auditors Report for the financial year ended 31°%
March 2022. The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors’ report are self-
explanatory and therefore do not require any further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & REPORT

M/s. Ashish Sehrawat & Associates, Company Secretaries, was appointed as Secretarial Auditors
to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22, Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Secretarial Audit report in form MR- 3
is enclosed herewith as “Annexure-F” to the Board’s Report.

The report is self-explanatory and for secretarial auditor comments the Board of directors of the
Company given explanation as below:

1. In context with Note No: 1 of the secretarial Audit Report, the board has clarified that the
company had not made entry in the structured digital database promptly on the sharing of
unpublished price sensitive information for legitimate purposes however the said structured
digital database has been duly maintained with the required data being entered therein with
adequate internal controls to ensure non-tampering of the database pursuant to Regulation
3(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

2. In context with Note No: 2 of the secretarial Audit Report, the board has clarified that the
company has complied with the Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 delayed by
Five days due to worsening impact of Pandemic in Haridwar. The Company requested for
grant of extension by Five days also. So penalty of Rs.29,500/- was paid by the Company
to the NSE.

COST AUDITOR

Maintenance of Cost Records has been specified by the Central Government, under sub -section
(1) of section 148, of the Companies Act, 2013, and records has been made and maintained. The
Company has appointed M/s Ahuja Sunny & Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN: 101411), as
Cost Auditor of company for the F.Y 2021-22.
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INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDITOR

During the year under review, K P A D & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Roorkee (FRN
014326C) has been appointed as Internal Auditor of the company for Internal Audit of Financial
year 2021-22.

During the year, the Company continued to implement his/her suggestions and recommendations
to improve the control environment. Their scope of work includes review of processes for
safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems
and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditor’s findings
are discussed with the process owners and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of
Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Board has adopted adequate policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company has successfully laid down the framework and ensured its effectiveness. V-Marc has
a well-defined delegation of power with authority limits for approving revenue as well as
expenditure. V-Marc has also well-defined processes for formulating and reviewing long term and
business plans. V-Marc will continue its efforts to align its processes and controls with global best
practices.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There was no such order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the Constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. There was no case filed or registered with the Committee during the year,
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. Further Company ensures that there is a healthy and safe environment for every women
employee at the workplace and made the necessary policies for safe and secure environment for
women employee.
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INCIDENT OF FRAUD

No significant fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

INVESTORS EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the companies Act, 2013 read with IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer & Refund) Rules 2016 all unpaid or unclaimed dividend are required
to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF established by Central Government after completion
of seven years. During the year under review, there was no amount liable or due to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company has complied with all applicable secretarial
standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central
Government pursuant to Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

Certificate from Mr. Vikas Garg, Managing Director and Mr. Ranjan Kumar Sawarna, Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the financial year 2021-22 was placed before the Board of
Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 28, 2022. A certificate is attached with this
report.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors acknowledge the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
provisions of Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the
preparation of annual accounts for the year ended on 31stMarch, 2022 and state that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed.
b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period.
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c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere appreciation for the excellent support
and co-ordination extend by the shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, RTA, employees,
Auditors, and other business associates. Your Directors gratefully acknowledges ongoing co-
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authorities. Your Directors also place on records their appreciation for the contribution made by
employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board
V-Marc India Limited

Place: Haridwar sd/- sd/-
Aloak Kumar
Date:18th August, 2022 Vikas Garg Tulsiyan

DIN:05268238 DIN:09462547
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ANNEXURE A-DIRECTOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Cables & Wire has a strong growth potential, given lower per capita consumption in India than
global counterparts. Key end-user segments include real estate, construction, power, consumer
electricals and agriculture. The government thrust to invest in infrastructure and focus on
renewable energy and advancement in telecommunication technology all augur well for a
sustained strong growth rate in the long term. The sector revenue growth rate has a high correlation
with gross fixed capital formation nominal at about 0.8x on a three-year rolling average basis.

The prospects of the Wire and Cable industry are interlinked with the other industries viz: Power,
Telecom, Railways, Real estate, Steel, Cement, Refineries, Infrastructure etc. With investments
across different infrastructure segments in the background of government initiatives, the demand
for cables is expected to increase considerably. With the growth of other related industries, the
Indian Wire and Cable industry is indeed bound to grow & prosper.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

V-Marc India Limited (V-Marc) is a specialised Control & Instrumentation cable company
offering wide range of cable products to multiple industries. V-Marc has over 2 decades of rich
experience and enjoys a strong brand image in the B2B segment. V-Marc designs, develops and
manufactures a varied range of Power, Control, Instrumentation, Thermocouple Extension /
Compensating and Communication cables. The company’s manufacturing plants are located in
Uttarakhand at 2 locations.

V-Marec is in the business of providing cost-effective and quality solutions for various electrical
connectivity requirements. V-Marc has carved a niche in manufacturing of customised cables as
per the customers’ specifications. Investments in infrastructure and various industries will prove to
be a big positive for the company. V-Marc continuously strives to achieve higher efficiencies, cost
control, better preventive maintenance and focuses on improving its product mix to attain
economies of scale.

COVID-19 IMPACT

COVID-19 Pandemic has disrupted businesses around the world. This the most difficult economic
challenge faced by economies in recent history. In responding to this crisis, company’s primary
objective is to ensure the safety of our employees, to deliver client commitments, and put in place
mechanisms to protect the financial well-being of the Company and protect its long-term
prospects.
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Company has implemented strict guidelines and undertaken necessary precautionary measures for
social distancing, limited manpower, staggered working, work from home, regular screening and
sanitisation and necessary guidance and advisory for providing a safe working environment to all
employees.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Wire is a piece of metal that is used to carry electric current on the other hand, cable contain a
number of wires inside a plastic or rubber which is used to carry electric signals. Copper,
aluminium, plastics and alloys are the materials which are used to make these wires and cables.
They are widely used in industries like defence and gas, oil, automotive etc. These days, due to
increasing residences and houses in developing countries, there is an increase in the use of the
wires and cables.

The domestic cables and wires industry has registered robust growth over the last five years led by
the government’s focus on providing power to all and gradual pickup from the housing market.
The wire and cables market in India has the potential to grow by USD 1.65 billion during 2021-
2025, and the market’s growth momentum will accelerate at a CAGR of 3.80%. The development
of infrastructural projects by the government and investment is driving the growth of the wire and
cable market in India.

The market is expected to be driven by factors such as the growth in renewable power generation
in India, the expansion and revamping of Transmission & Distribution infrastructure in India, and
increasing investments in metro railways. Increased investments in smart grid projects and up-
gradation of power transmission and distribution systems are also estimated to propel the demand
for wires & cables globally. Significant investments in smart grid technology have resulted in an
increasing need for grid interconnections. Additionally, rising investments in underground cables
and the growth of renewable energy are set to escalate the adoption of wires and cables. Wire and
cables demand is directly dependent on the growth of the manufacturing industry and
infrastructure in the power, telecommunications, residential and commercial sectors. Thus the
government’s initiatives on various fronts like — power, housing, infrastructure and digitization are
sure to generate a lot of business for the wire and cable industry in the foreseeable future.
Likewise, with the government’s emphasis on pushing renewable energy to the forefront, the
industry is now looking forward to supplying cables for solar and wind power applications in
addition to oil and gas, railways and other specialized segments. Wires and cables are deployed
across an extensive range of applications which include consumer electronics, utilities, material
handling, automotive, and entertainment/leisure amongst others. Growing inclination toward the
expansion of prevailing grid networks coupled with lack of efficient electric infrastructure will
propel the industry outlook over the forecast timeline.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Finance Cost Risk: Finance Cost risk arises due to payment of high rate of interest & charges on
term loans and other funds & non-fund-based facilities being availed by the company from banks
and other financial institutions. The company tries to minimize this risk by keeping a check on the

57



\ 4

V-MARC..

interest rates & charges charged by various banks & financial institutions and by swapping its long
term/short term loans with banks/ FIs charging lesser interest rates and other charges.

Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may be unable to meet short term
financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to
cash without a loss of capital or income in the process. The company manages the liquidity risk by
ensuring the availability of adequate funds at all times to meet its liability obligations on before the
due dates.

Raw Material Availability and Price Fluctuations: Scarce availability and price-volatility in
Company’s Basic Raw Materials - Copper, Aluminium, Steel, and PVC etc. can severely impact
the profits of the Company. To mitigate these risks, the Company inculcates MOUs with its
suppliers, price escalation clauses for large orders and hedges these raw-materials on the
commodity exchange.

Foreign Exchange Risk: Foreign exchange risk is a financial risk posed by an exposure to
unanticipated changes in the exchange rate between two currencies. Company may import a part of
its raw materials, spare parts etc. and is also engaged in export of its products. To mitigate this
risk, the company resorts to forward booking where deemed appropriate.

Human Resource Risk: In the absence of quality human resources, the company may not be able
to execute its growth plans. To mitigate this risk, the company places due importance to its human
capital assets and invests in building and nurturing a strong talented pool to gain strategic edge and
achieve operational excellence in all its goals.

DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

S.No. Particulars Standalone Explanations
2021-22 2020-21
1. EBIDTA/Turnover 8.61% 8.59% Some increase due to

increase in interest
and Depreciation

2. Debtors Turnover 3.58 3.79 Sales Realisation is
Ratio slow during the year
because of COVID-19

impact
3. Inventory Turnover 2.27 2.81 Value of Finished
Ratio Goods increases

during the year that is
why its impact is on
this ratio. This
increases  due  to
inspection process of
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Govt. material before
despatch.

4. Interest Coverage 2.38 2.88 It is due to increase in

Ratio the Interest Cost

5. Current Ratio 1.38 1.34 This ratio improves
because of value of
current assets
increases.

6. Debt Equity Ratio 0.88 1.24 Increase in Equity
Fund improves this
ratio better.

7. Operating Profit 7.19% 7.52% This ratio declines

Margin (%) slightly due to high
material consumption.

8. Net Profit Margin (%) 2.76% 3.31% This ratio also
declines  due to
increase in material
cost.

9. Return on net worth 7.20% 13.81% Due to low profit in

(%) comparison to last
year, this ratio also
declines.

10. Book Value per share 30.42 24.98 Book value per share

(Rs) increases due to
increase in Equity
Shareholders Fund.
11. Earnings Per Share 2.19 3.45 Due to decline in
(Rs) — Basic profit, this ratio also
declines

12. Earnings Per Share 2.19 3.45 Due to decline in

(Rs) — Diluted profit, this ratio also
declines

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has implemented proper system for safeguarding the operations/business of the
company, through which the assets are verified and frauds, errors are reduced and accounts,
information connected to it are maintained such, so as to timely completion of the statements. The
Company has adequate systems of Internal Controls commensurate with its size and operations to
ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These controls ensure safeguarding of assets,
reduction and detection of fraud and error, adequacy and completeness of the accounting records
and timely preparation of reliable financial information.
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The company gets internal audit and verification done at regular intervals. The requirement of
having internal auditor compulsory by statue in case of listed and other classes of companies as
prescribed shall further strengthen the internal control measures of company.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

These Financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with India Accounting
Standards, notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read along with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a well-defined process of risk management, wherein the
identification, analysis and assessment of the various risks, measuring of the probable impact of
such risks, formulation of risk mitigation strategy and implementation of the same takes place in a
structured manner. Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated
completely, all efforts are made to minimize the impact of such risks on the operations of the
Company. Necessary internal control systems are also put in place by the Company on various
activities across the board to ensure that business operations are directed towards attaining the
stated organizational objectives with optimum utilization of the resources.

The Company, through its risk management process, aims to contain the risks within its appetite.
There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONS FRONT

Your Company has undertaken employee’s development initiatives, which have very positive
impact on the morale and team spirit of the employees. The company has continued to give special
attention to human resources and overall development.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in the reports of the Board of Directors and Management’s discussions and
analysis may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied since
Company’s operations are influence by many external and internal factors beyond the control of
the Company. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any of
these statements on the basis of any subsequent Developments, information or events.

For and on behalf of the Board
V-Marc India Limited

Place: Haridwar sd/- sd/-
Aloak Kumar
Date:18th August, 2022 Vikas Garg Tulsiyan

DIN:05268238 DIN:09462547
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ANNEXURE - B TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE MEMBERS OF BOARD

INTRODUCTION / BACKGROUND / PURPOSE OF POLICY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of V_Mare¢ India Limited (the” Company”) has adopted the
following policy with regard to the remuneration of Directors, in line with the requirements under
the provisions of Section 197 and Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Board
Remuneration Policy of the Company is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations™), and circular and guidelines issued thereunder which deals with
formation of Board Remuneration Policy (“the Policy”). The Board / Nomination & Remuneration
Committee will review and may amend this policy from time to time.

The objective of the Policy is to put in place a mechanism for determining the remuneration of
Directors of the Company in terms of the statutory and business requirements of the Company.

SCOPE

The scope of the Policy is to put in place a mechanism for determining the remuneration of
Directors of the Company in terms of the statutory and business requirements of the Company.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“N&RC”) shall recommend to the Board of
Directors of the Company for their approval the remuneration to be paid to Executive Directors
including Whole-time Director and Managing Director & CEO of the Company, remuneration to
the Non-Executive Part-time Chairperson, remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Role of CS team is as follows:

1. Preparation of Board Remuneration Policy for payment of remuneration to Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Part-time Chairperson and Non-Executive Directors and any
revision in remuneration Policy

2. Preparation of Compensation & Benefits Policy (“C&B Policy”) which deals with the
Compensation & Benefits of the Managing Director & CEO and the Whole-time Directors.
The remuneration of all the Executive Directors shall be governed by the C&B Policy of
the Company.

3. Intimate the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“N&RC”) about the C&B Policy
and about the Board Remuneration Policy.
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4. Taking into Consideration the recommendations given to the Board by N&RC Committee
the remuneration to be paid to the Executive Directors.

5. The remuneration payable to the directors of the company, shall at all times be determined,
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The Company strives to provide fair compensation to directors, taking into consideration industry
benchmarks, Company's performance vis-a-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered,
performance/ track record, macroeconomic review on remuneration packages of heads of other
organizations.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the company, shall at all times be determined, in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR AND
WHOLETIME- DIRECTOR

The terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration payable to a Managing Director and
Whole-time Director(s) shall be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to
the Board for its approval which shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company and by the Central Government in case such appointment is at variance to
the conditions specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. Approval of the Central
Government is not necessary if the appointment is made in accordance with the conditions
specified in Schedule V to the Act.

In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Company may appoint a person as its
Managing Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding 5 (years) at a time.

The executive directors may be paid remuneration either by way of a monthly payment or at a
specified percentage of the net profits of the Company or partly by one way and partly by the
other.

The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus and quantum of perquisites including,
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided
and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall be within the
overall remuneration approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

While recommending the remuneration payable to a Managing/ Whole-time Director, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, inter alia, have regard to the following matters:

e Financial and operating performance of the Company
e Relationship between remuneration and performance
e Industry/ sector trends for the remuneration paid to executive directorate

63



A\ 4

VoARD.

Annual Increments to the Managing/ Whole Time Director(s) shall be within the slabs approved by
the Shareholders. Increments shall be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at
times it desires to do so but preferably on an annual basis.

INSURANCE PREMIUM AS PART OF REMUNERATION

Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its managing director, whole-time
director, manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for
indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance,
breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the company, the
premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any
such personnel.

However, if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be
treated as part of the remuneration.

REMUNERATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of

e Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings
e Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company

Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board may
decide the sitting fee payable to independent directors. Provided that the amount of such fees shall
not exceed the maximum permissible under the Companies Act, 2013.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS IN OTHER CAPACITY

The remuneration payable to the directors including managing or whole-time director or manager
shall be inclusive of the remuneration payable for the services rendered by him in any other
capacity except the following:

a) the services rendered are of a professional nature; and
b) in the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the directorpossesses the
requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.

EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS
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As members of the Board, the performance of the individual Directors as well as the performance
of the entire Board and its Committees is required to be formally evaluated annually.

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 also mandates the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

In developing the methodology to be used for evaluation on the basis of best standards and
methods meeting international parameters, the Board / Committee may take the advice of an
independent professional consultant.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(OTHER THAN MANAGING/ WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS), KEY-EXECUTIVES AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The executive management of a company is responsible for the day to day management of

a company. The Companies Act, 2013 has used the term “key managerial personnel” to define the
executive management.

The KMPs are the point of first contact between the company and its stakeholders. While the
Board of Directors are responsible for providing the oversight, it is the key managerial personnel
and the senior management who are responsible for not just laying down the strategies as well as
its implementation.

The Companies Act, 2013 has for the first time recognized the concept of Key Managerial
Personnel. As per section 2(51) “key managerial personnel”, in relation to a company, means—

1) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;

i1) the whole-time director;

i) the Chief Financial Officer;

v) the company secretary;

V) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time
employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board and

vi) such other officer as may be prescribed.

Among the KMPs, the remuneration of the CEO or the Managing Director and the Wholetime
Director(s), shall be governed by the Section on REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS of this
Policy dealing with “Remuneration of Managing Director and Wholetime- Director”.
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Apart from the directors, the remuneration of

- All the Other KMPs such as the company secretary or any other officer that may be
prescribed under the statute from time to time; and

- “Senior Management” of the Company which here means, the core management team
comprising of such members of management as determined by the Company under Layer 1
of the System-Driven Disclosures in respect of Regulation 7(2) (b) of PIT Regulations,

shall be determined by the Human Resources Department of the Company in consultation with the
Managing Director and/ or the Wholetime Director Finance.

The remuneration determined for all the above said senior personnel shall be in line with the
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key - executive officers based on their
performance and contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that attract and retain key
executives, in still a long-term commitment to the Company, and develop a pride and sense of
Company ownership, all in a manner consistent with shareholder interests.

The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to
P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided by the Company’s HR
department.

Decisions on Annual Increments of the Senior Personnel shall be decided by the Human Resources
Department in consultation with the Managing Director and/ or the Whole time Director Finance
of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES

Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the
employees is determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including
professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market conditions.

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate and reasonable
compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall ensure that the level of
remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who perform according to set expectations
for the individual in question.

The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may be combined
to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

The annual increments to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on the
annual appraisal carried out by the HODs of various departments.

Decisions on Annual Increments shall be made on the basis of this annual appraisal.
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GENERAL

This Policy shall apply to all future employment of Company's Senior Management including Key
Managerial Personnel and Board of Directors.

Any or all the provisions of this Policy would be subject to the revision/ amendment in the
Companies Act, 2013, related rules and regulations, guidelines and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on the subject as may be notified from time to
time. Any such amendment shall automatically have the effect of amending this Policy without the
need of any approval by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/ or the Board of
Directors.
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ANNEXURE-C TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
All contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: All the
transactions were entered by the Company in ordinary course of business and were in arm's length
basis:

Name of the
Related party Sandeep
& nature of Kumar | Alaok Kumar Mukesh | Raj Kumar | Meenakshi
1 | relationship Vikas Garg Srivastava Tulsiyan Bansal Pandey Garg

Nature of
contracts
/arrangements | Remuneration | Remuneration | Remuneration | Director’s | Director’s | Director’s
2 | / transaction Paid Paid Paid Fees Fees Fees

Duration of

the contracts
/arrangements FY 2021- | FY 2021-| FY 2021-
3 | / transaction FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 22 22 22

Salient terms
of the
contractsor
arrangements
or transaction
including the
4 | value, if any 1,44,00,000 40,00,000 2,76,785 3,50,000 3,50,000 3,50,000

Date of

approval by
5 | the Board 31.08.2022 31.08.2022 31.08.2022 | 31.08.2022 | 31.08.2022 | 31.08.2022

Amount paid
as advances,
if

6 | any N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
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Name of
the
Related
party &
nature of
relationsh

1|ip

Ranjan
Kumar
Sawarna

Kanchan
Gupta

Neeraj
Kumar
Khatod

Qurban
Ahmad
Khan

Shiv
Kishore Rai

Suresh
Chandra
Chandola

Nature of
contracts
/arrange
ments /
transactio
2| n

Remuner
ation Paid

Remuner
ation Paid

Remuner
ation
Paid

Remuneratio
n Paid

Remunerati
on Paid

Remuneration
Paid

Duration
of the
contracts
/arrange
ments /
transactio
3| n

FY
2021-22

FY
2021-22

FY
2021-22

FY 2021-22

FY 2021-
22

FY 2021-22

Salient
terms of
the
contracts
or
arrangem
ents or
transactio
n
including
the value,
4| if any

11.40,537

5,34.,188

11,87,623

11,18,042

12,35,452

12,35,452

Date of
approval
by the

5| Board

31.08.202
2

31.08.202
2

31.08.202
2

31.08.2022

31.08.2022

31.08.2022

Amount
paid as
advances,
if

6| any

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A
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V Marc Marc
Name of the Electri Electri
Related V Marc cals | V Marc cals
party & Gyan The | Electrica Pvt | Electric Pvt
nature of Vijay Prakash | Nature IsPvt | Limite | als Pvt| Limite
1 | relationship Bhat Sharma Resort | Limited d | Limited d
Nature of
contracts Job- Given
/arrangemen | Remuner Purchase work office
ts/ ation | Remunera | Sale of | of Raw- | Charge | Sale of on
2 | transaction Paid | tion Paid Goods | Material | spaid | Goods Rent
Duration of
the
contracts
/arrangemen FY FY FY
ts/ FY | FY 2021- FY FY | 2021- 2021- | 2021-
3 | transaction 2021-22 22 | 2021-22 | 2021-22 22 22 22
Salient
terms of the
contractsor
arrangement
s or
transaction
including
the value, if 32,21,60 | 2,70,50 | 5,49.44
4 | any 11,13,836 | 11,39,458 | 5,39,338 ,090 782 1| 70,800
Date of
approval by | 31.08.202 | 31.08.202 | 31.08.20 | 31.08.20 | 31.08.2 | 31.08.2 | 31.08.
5 | the Board 2 2 22 22 022 022 2022
Amount
paid as
advances, if
6 |any N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

The Company has entered into contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred to in
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, all such transactions are entered into in the
ordinary course of business and in the opinion of the Board all such transaction are at arm’s length.

For and on behalf of the Board
V-Marec India Limited

Place: Haridwar sd/- sd/-
Aloak Kumar
Date:18th August, 2022 Vikas Garg Tulsiyan

DIN:05268238 DIN:09462547
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ANNEXURE-D TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Annual Report on CSR Activities
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) & Rules made thereunder]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

This Policy which has been amended to incorporate the provisions of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, aims to support various
activities for betterment of the environment and living conditions of the population directly
or through recognized agencies / funds. Such activities will cover one or more of the CSR
activities laid down in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as revised from time to
time.

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Act,

which is available on the Company’s website and the web link for the same is provided in
this report.

Composition of CSR Committee as on March 31, 2022:

S. | Name of Director | Designation/Nature of | Number of | Number of
No. Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings
Committees held | of CSR
during the year Committee
attended during
the year
1. | Mr. Aloak Kumar | Additional 1 1
Tulsiyan Director(Executive &
Non-Independent)
2. | Mr. Vikas Garg Managing Director 1 1
3. | Mr. Raj Kumar | Independent Director
Pandey

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

http://www.v-marc.com
Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of

sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):
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In terms of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules,
2021, the requirement of conducting an impact assessment of its CSR Projects is not
applicable to the Company.

S. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any.

S. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off Amount required to be
No. from set-off for the
preceding financial years (in ') | financial year, if any (in
)
N.A.
6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) — Rs. 7,27,74,910/-
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) — Rs.
14,55,498/-

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous
financial years — N.A.

(¢)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Rs.0/-

(d)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢) — 14,55,498/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in )
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year | Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per
(' in lakh) as per Section 135(6) second proviso to Section 135(5)

Amount Date of Transfer | Name of | Amount Date of
Fund Transfer

Nil Nil -—— Nil - -—

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
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Sl. | Name Item Local | Location of the | Project Amount | Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
N of the from the | area | project duration | allocated | transferred | transferred | Implementation | Implementation
o Project | list of (Yes/ (in for the to to - Direct - Through
activities | No) years) project Unspent Unspent (Yes/No) Implementing
in (Cin CSR CSR Agency
Schedule lakh) Account Account
il for for
to the the project | the project
Act as as
per Section | per Section
135(6) 135(6)
( inlakh) | ( in lakh)
State | District Name CSR
Registration
number
NOT APPLICABLE
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 |2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI | Name of | Item Local Location of Amount | Mode of Mode of
. | the from area the project spent implement | Implementation -
N | Project | the (Yes/No) for ation Through
0 list of the - Direct Implementing
activitie project | (Yes/No) Agency
s ( in
in lakh)
Schedul
e VII
to the
Act
State | District Name | CSR
Registration
1. |[CSR Educatio | No Delhi | Delhi | 5,00,00 | No Sum CSR0001217
Activities | n 0/- Drishti | 8
Educat
ion
Society
2. |CSR Educatio | No Delhi | Delhi | 5,00,00 | No Sum CSR0001217
Activities | n 0/- Drishti | 8
Educat
ion
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Society
3. [CSR Educatio | No Delhi | Delhi | 4,60,00 | No Sum CSR0001217
Activities | n 0/- Drishti | 8
Educat
ion
Society
(d) Amount spent in administrative Overheads : Nil
(¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if Applicable : Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year : Rs. 14.60 Lacs
(8b+8c+8d+8e)
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any
S1. Particulars Amount
No. (in Rs. lacs)
i Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 14,55,498/-
section 135(5)
ii Total amount spent for the financial year 14,60,000/-
1ii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii-(1)] 4,502/-
v Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or 0.00
activities of the previous financial years, if any
\% Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 4,502/-
[(ii)-(1v)]
(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years
SI. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any | Amount
No. | Financial transferred | spent in the fund specified remaining
Year to reporting under Schedule VII as per | to
Unspent Financial Year | Section 135(6), if any be spent in
CSR (in ) succeeding
Account Financial
under Years
Section (in")
135(6) Name | Amount | Date of
(in") of (in") transfer
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the
Fund
1 2018-19 - Nil - - -—-- 7,48,050/-
2 2019-20 - 8,73,936/- - - -——- 9,95,736/-
3 2020-21 - 8,74,325/- - - — 9,38,525/-
3 2021-22 -—- 16,80,000/- PM 718585 | 30-09- | 0/-
Care 2021
Fund
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SI. | Project | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of
No. | ID of the | Year duration | amount | spenton | amount the project

Project | in which (in allocated | the spent -
the years) for project at theend | Completed/
project was the in the of Ongoing
commenced project | reporting | reporting
(in ") Financial | Financial
Year Year
(in ") (in ")
Not Applicable

10.

11.

A\ 4

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

(a)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset — N.A.

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) — N.A.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc. — N.A.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset) — N. A.

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per Section 135(5) — N.A.
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Place: Haridwar

Date:18th August, 2022

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
V-MARC INDIA LIMITED

sd/- sd/-
Aloak Kumar
Vikas Garg Tulsiyan

DIN:05268238 DIN:09462547
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ANNEXURE E- TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act,

2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees

of the Company for the financial year:

Non-Executive Directors

Ratio to median remuneration *

Mr. Mukesh Bansal

Mrs. Meenakshi Garg (w.e.f 04.02.2021)

Mr. Raj Kumar Pandey

* No remuneration was paid to Non-executive dire

ctors except sitting fees.

Executive Directors

Ratio to median remuneration

Mr. Vikas Garg 79.39:1
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava 22.05:1
Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan 1.53:1

*Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is appointed as Additional Director (Executive & Non-Independent)

w.e.£26.02.2022.

*Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava resigned from the post of Whole-Time director w.e.f 23.02.2022

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, company secretary in the financial year:
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Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial

Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary (CS)

% increase in

remuneration in the

financial year
Mr. Vikas Garg 0.00%
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava 0.00%
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Sawarna (CFO) 6.00%
Ms. Kanchan Gupta (CS) appointed on 01.02.2021 6.00%

c¢. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:
0.00%
d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 191
e. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average increase in remuneration of Managerial Personnel 5.70%
Average increase in remuneration of employees other than the Managerial Personnel | 10.77%
f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
g. The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided as under:-
Particulars of top employee in terms of remuneration drawn, as on March 31, 2022:
S. Name of Designation | Rem | Nature of | Qualificati| Exper DOJ [Age Previous
No.| Employee uner | employmen on ience (Year| Employmen
ation t (in s) t&
(Cin Years) Designation
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Vikas Garg Managing 144.0 | Permanent M.B.A 21 04-03- 43 | -
Director 0 2014
Sandeep Whole-Time | 40.00 | Permanent M.B.A 21 01-02- 44 | SBI-
Kumar Director 2020 Manager
Srivastava(res
igned w.e.f
23.02.2022)
Suresh GM-Quality | 12.35 | Permanent | Diploma 31 01-10- 57 | Ever Shine
Chandra & Controls in 2010 Electrical
Chandola Engineeri Works
ng (Ecko
Cable)-
Testing
Engineer
Shiv Kishore GM- 12.35 | Permanent | Diploma 26 04-08- 50 | PrimCab
Rai Production & in 2015 Industries
Planning Electronic (A Unit of
s& R.C. Cable
Communi Private
cation Limited)-
engineerin Works
g Manager
Neeraj Kumar Zonal 11.87 | Permanent M.B.A 21 06-10- 48 | Finolex
Khatod Manager- 2014 Cable
Sales & Private
Marketing Limited-
Deputy
Manager
Ranjan Chief 11.40 | Permanent Cost 21 20-06- 52 | Greenply
Kumar Financial Accountan 2017 Industries
Sawarna Officer t Ltd-
Commercia
1 Manager
Gyan Prakash | Legal Head | 11.39 | Permanent LLB, 26 21-11- 54 | Marine
Sharma & Vice- M.Com 2016 Frontiers
President- Private
Commercial Limited-
& Business CFO
Development
Vijay Bhatt GM-Sales & | 11.13 | Permanent | Graduate 21 01-11- 53 | Kalinga
Marketing 2010 Cable-Head
Marketing
Qurban RM-Sales & | 11.18 | Permanent B.Com 21 16-08- 49 | Gupta
Ahmad Khan Marketing 2019 Power
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Infrastructu
re Ltd.

10.| Brij Mohan | Senior 8.53 | Permanent | Graduate 01-04- 22 | Asian
Garg Manager- 2021 Wires &
Production Cables
Industries
# All employees are on roll basis except resigned
Note :
1. Remuneration includes Basic Salary, Allowances, Taxable value of perquisites calculated
in accordance with the Income Tax, 1961 and Rules made thereunder.
2. None of the employees, except Mr. Vikas Garg own more than 2% of the outstanding
shares of the Company as on March 31, 2022.
3. None of the employee is a relative of any director or manager of the company except Mr.
Vikas Garg who is the Husband of Mrs. Meenakshi Garg (Non-executive Director)
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AS ON MARCH 31, 2022
A Employed throughout the financial year under review and were in receipt of remuneration
for the year which, in the aggregate was not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- per annum:-
S. | Name / Age | Qualification | Remuneration | Date of Previous Shareholding
No.| Designation/ / Experience Joining employment & | in the
) (Years) ) designation Company in
Nature of Duties (in years) Number &
Percentage
1 | Vikas Garg 44 21 1,44,00,000 04-03- NIL 55.26%
. : 2014
Managing Director
B Employed for the part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration which in the
aggregate was not less than Rs.8,50,000/- per month :-
S. Name / Age Qualification | Remunerati Date of Previous Shareholding
No | Designation/ /Experience | on Joining employment | in the
(Years) & designation | Company in
Natl'lre of (in years) Number &
Duties Percentage
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NIL | NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Place: Haridwar sd/- sd/-
Aloak Kumar
Date:18th August, 2022 Vikas Garg Tulsiyan

DIN:05268238

DIN:09462547
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ANNEXURE- F TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

V-Marec India Limited

(Formerly known as Asian Galaxy Private Limited)
Plot No. 3, 4, 18, 20a, Sector [IDC, SIDCUL,
Haridwar - 249403

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S V-MARC INDIA LIMITED (Formerly
known as Asian Galaxy Private Limited)(“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of a secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31% March 2022 ("audit period") complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(1))  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
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v)

External Commercial Borrowings;(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

The following Regulations and Guidelines are prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not Applicable as the Company is not a registered Registrar to an Issue
or Transfer Agent during the Financial Year under review)

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; ; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities)Regulations,
2018.(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
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j.  As informed by the Management, there are no other laws that are applicable
specifically to the company

(vi)  The Company has identified the following law applies specifically to the Company:
a. The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016;
b. Factories Act, 1948;

¢. Environment Protection Act, 1986 and the rules made thereunder;

d. Other Labour laws & taxation laws;
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India to the extent
applicable.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as
mentioned below:

1. The Company has not maintained the structured digital database pursuant to Regulation
3(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.

2. The Company has not compiled the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for non-disclosure of financial result for the
half year and year ended as on 31 March, 2021 on time as prescribed under the
regulation including extension so granted by the respective authority. Consequently NSE
has imposed fine of INR 29,500/~ (including GST@I18%) as represented by the
management of the company.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors, and a Women
Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in case of shorter
notice, compliance as required under the act has been made by the Company and a system
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exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the
Board, as the case may be.

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock
Exchange Limited (Emerge-SME Platform);

We further report that during the audit period the specific events that took place which are
as follows:

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Shares of the company were listed on 9" April, 2021 on NSE (EMERGE). The
Company has received approval vide NSE/LIST/1009 dated 8™ April, 2021 from National
Stock Exchange (NSE) for the listing of 22,785,696 equity shares on NSE (EMERGE)
platform w.e.f. 9" April, 2021.

The Company during the year under review has issued/allotted 840,000 equity shares of
face value Rs. 10/- per share at a premium of Rs. 29/- per share through private placement
vide members approval dated 2" March, 2021. The Company has undertaken in
consultation with the BRLM, a private placement of 8, 40,000 Equity Shares for cash
consideration aggregating Rs. 327.60 Lakhs (“Pre IPO-Placement”). The no. of equity
shares as disclosed in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated February 18, 2021 being 8,
40,000 Equity Shares has been reduced accordingly.

Mr. Sandeep Kumar Srivastava who held the post of Whole-Time Director has resigned
from the Directorship with effect from 23 February, 2022.

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan has been appointed as an Executive & Non-Independent
Additional Director as Whole time director with effect from 26" February, 2022 in the
board meeting held on 26™ February, 2022 subject to approval by shareholders in ensuing
general meeting.
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and form an
integral part of this report.

For Ashish Sehrawat & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Ashish Sehrawat
Membership Number—51861
COP No. -22005

UDIN: A051861D000808914
Peer Review Cer. No: 2226/2022

Date: 18" August, 2022
Place: New Delhi
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To

ANNEXURE-A

The Members

V-Marec India Limited

(Formerly known as Asian Galaxy Private Limited)
Plot No. 3, 4, 18, 20a, Sector [IDC, SIDCUL,
Haridwar - 249403.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1y

2)

3)

4)

)

6)

The maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verifications were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion for issue of Secretarial Audit Report.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on a test basis.

The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Ashish Sehrawat & Associates.
Company Secretaries

CS Ashish Sehrawat

Membership Number — 51861
COP No. —22005
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Seeryrs Tisabaayi Bafin e
UDIN: A051861D000808914
Peer Review Cer. No: 2226/2022

Date: 18" August, 2022
Place: New Delhi
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Compliance Certificate

[under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015]

We, Vikas Garg, Managing Director and Ranjan Kumar Sawarna, Chief Financial Officer of V-
Marc India Limited certify that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31%
March, 2022 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i1) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity
during the year ended 31 March, 2022 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed
entity’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and
the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(1) There have not been significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the year;

(i1) There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and
(i1)) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 28" May, 2022 Vikas Garg Ranjan Kumar Sawarna
Place: Haridwar Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 05268238
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I ¥ 'S REPORT

To

The Members

V-Mare India Limited

Plot Mo. 3, 4, 18 & 204

Sector [IDC SideniHaridwar, 249403

Uttarakhand
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of V-MARC INDIA LIMITED (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31" MARCH 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles gencrally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit/loss,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Awditor's Responsibiliies jor ihe Audit of the Financial Stotemenis
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and nppmp_'rjn_}_‘u__“m provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
staterments. ” —- H“u
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included Report of the Directors and the following
Annexures thereto (namely Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate
Governance, Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities, Form AQC - 1,
Conservation of energy, Technology Absorption and Exchange Earnings and Outgo), but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon, In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
e read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial stmements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude thar there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

1 N LN FO " FINANCI ENT
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section |34(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Cnml};_-rj{«?_frﬁ_ Moe,_preventing and detecting frauds and other
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irregularities; selection and application of appropriate sccounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic ahermative but to do so.

The Board of Direciors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR _THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Owur ohjectives are o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 10 issee an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstalernents can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions ol users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« [dentifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements, whether due
w0 fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from Traud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as froud may involve collusion, furg.ffx,lialtnkimﬂ omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. ' '
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» Obtain an understanding of imtermal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design aedit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
conirols.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial stastements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(1) 10 evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the finencial stalements.

We communicate with those charged with govenance regarding. among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, reloted safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the sudit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit maners. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely marg circumslances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the ndverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected Lo putweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.
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: Y REQUIREME
As required by the Companies {Auditor's Repon) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, w the extent applicable.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account #s required by law have been kept by the
Company so fur as it appears from our examination of those books.
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of sccount.
In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounis) Rules, 2014.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating efTectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in *Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating  effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reparting.
With respect to the other malters o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. in our opinion and 1o the best
of our information and according to the cxplanations given (o us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the vear is in sccordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

94



RAJEEV SINGAL & CO. 175, Dwarkapuri, Main Road

Muaffarnagar (L P )-251001
ez Mo, - (HEEI2C wiwvw camjeevsinghal.com
PAN- AAPFRIOIIN einghalrk 201 2 Ggmail com
Dffice Mob- +F 105640515

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS % Opp. Shiv Mandir First Floog

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given o us:

k

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its finuncial
position in its Financial Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foresecable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, 10 the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Uhimate Beneficiaries.

(b}  The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
beliefl, as disclosed in the notes 1o accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner  whatspever by or on behall of the Funding Pany (“Ullimate
Beneficiaries”™) or provide any guar urity or the like on behall of the
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() Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come Lo our notice that has caused us
1o believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11{e), as
provided under {a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not

proposed final dividend for the year.

For Rajeev Singal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRM:-008692C

@
(c nil Kumar )

Pariner
M. No:- 408730

Place: Handwar

Date 128" May,2022
LDIN: 22408730 AJUQRU3059
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INDEPENDENT A

With reference to the Annexure A referred 1o in the Independent Auditor's Repont 1o the members
of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report the

following:

i)

(a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property & Plant & Equipment and Capital Work
in progress and Intangible Assets.

(b} The fixed asscts have been properly verified by the management st reasonable

intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

{d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including

Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the vear.

(e} No proceedings have been inftiated during the year or are pending against the

()

b}

Company as at 315t March. 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The invemories were physically verified during the vear by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard o the size of the Company and the nature of its operations.
No discrepancies of 10% or mare in the aggregste for each class of inventories were
noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of
account,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the vear, from banks or financisl institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanations given
w us, the quarterly returns and statements comprising (stock statements, book debt
statements, and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors) filed by the Company
with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of
account of the Company, of the respeciive quaners.
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The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence
reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable

According to information and explanations given to us the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon,

During the year company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 We have broadly reviewed the books of
accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Andit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

d ©
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In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund (including interest thereon), Income-
tax (including interest thereon), Goods and Service tax (including interest thereon),
Professional tax and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been
regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities except following :

Nature of Demand Financial Amount(Rs.)
Year/Assessment Year

Income Tax 2013-1472014-15 72010.00

Income Tax 2017-18/2018-19 107960.00

Income Tax 2018-19/2019-20 33620.00

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks/ financial institutions or
from the government. The Company has not taken any issued any debentures during the
year.

{a) The company has raised money by way of initial public offer through book building
process and got listed on NSE Emerge on 09 April 2021. In our opinion, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way of [PO have been
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

{b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x}b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{a) To the best of our knowledge no fraud by the Company or no material frand on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year

{b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the vear and up to
the date of this reporn.

(c) As represented by the Management, there was no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this audit report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2020 Order is not applicable

In cur opinion the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related panties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

() In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of the entity.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reponts issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period up to March, 2022,

In cur opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 Hence, reporing under clause (xvi}a), (b) and () of the order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

Xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities (Asset Liability Maturity (ALM) pattern), other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, we are of the opinion that material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company may not be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they Fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. g
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The Company was.not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or umover
of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during
the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company during the year Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year

For Rajeev Singal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRM:-008692C

{CA Sunil Kumar )}
i Partner

M.MNo:- 408730

Place: Haridwar

_FH!,/ Date ;28" May, 2022
S UDIN:Z2408 TI0ATUQRUIDSS
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"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPEND ' REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT2013*THE ACT™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of V MARC INDIA
LIMITED (*the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of India . These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013.
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemal financial controls over the
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA] and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material weakness cxists, and
testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control bused on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemenis, whether due to fraud
Or ermor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A company’s internal financial control over financial repurl.mg is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relibilipe i
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

{ 1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispesitions of the assets of the company;

(2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorities of
management and directors of the company; and

{(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to ermor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31,2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential componenis of inlermal control
stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

For Rajeev Singal& Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRMN:-0086%2C

»

b (CA Sunil Kumar )
. Pariner
/ M No:- 408730
S 2 Tw

ixeaes Place: Haridwar
Date -28™ May, 2022

UDIN:224087 30AJUQRUINSS
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V -MARC INDIA LIMITED
(CIN-L3ISURZ014PLCO01066)

NOTE NO. 1

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31032022 AND FROFIT &
LSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31.03.2022

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to accounts

Corperate Infermation

The Company was incorporated on March 4%, 2014, The Company is engaged in the Manufsciuring of
PVC Insulated Wires & Cables.

Significant Accounting Policies

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
I, Use olEstimates
The preparation of Summary Financial lnformation in confermity with GAAP requires that
the management of the Company to make estimates and assumplions that affect the
reported amounts of income and cxpenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and
linbilitics, and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the daie of the financial
statements. Examples of such estimates include the wseful lives of property, plant, and
equipment and intangible assets, provision for doubeful debis/ advances, future obligations
in respect of retirement benefit plans, cle, The difference, if any, between the actual results
and exstimates is recognized in the period in which the resulis ane known.

2. Accounting Assumpions: -
(i} Going Concern: -
The enterpeise is normally viewed a2 a going concem, that is, as continuing in operation
fior the foreseenble fiture, It is assumed that the enterprise has neither the intention ner
the necessity of liquidation or of cunailing materially the scale of the operations.
(i) Consistency: -
It is assumed that sccounting pelicies are consisient from one period 1o another.
(i) Accruak -
Revenues and costs are scerued, thal (s, recognized as they are carned or incurred (and
mot a5 money is received of paid) and recorded in the financial statements of the periods

to which they relate. [The considerations affecting the provess of matching costs with
revenues uider the accmul assumption are nol deall with in this sistement. )

3. Valustion of invenlorkes

The stock of Finished goods are valued at a fower of Cost of material consumed plas
manufacturing expenses incidental thereto or market value. Scrap is valued lower at cost of
market value,
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4, Cash Flow Statemenis

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method as set out in accounting standard -3 on
the cash flow statement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

5, Depreciation and amorfization

The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset of olher amotnt substitted for
cost, bess its estimuted residual value. Deprecialion on wngible fived assets has been
provided on the Writlen Down Value WDV method as per the useful Life prescribed in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

&, Revenue Recogiltion

¥ Revenue is recognized to the extent it is possible that economic benefits will flow to the
company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there is reasonable certainty
regarding ultimate collection.

¥ Revenuwe from the sale of materiaks’ products is recognized on a transfer of all significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 10 the customers, which generally comncides
with the dispatch of goods. Sales are stated exclusive of Goods & Serviee Tax and
netted of trade discounts, and sales returns,

¥ Imerest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the
amount cutstanding and the rate applacable.

# Revenue in respect of other income is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to
its determination or realization exists,
7. Praperiy, Flant and Equipmeni

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). The cost of a property, plant, and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any attributable 1o the cost of bringing the asset to is working condition
for its intended use. Expenditure on addition, improvements and renewals are capitalized
and expenditure for maintenance and repair 15 charged to Profil and Loss account.

8. Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculsted by dividing the net profit afier ax for the yeor
attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company by the weighled avernge number of
Equity Shares outstanding uf the end of the year. Diluted carnings per share is caleulated by
dividing met profit atiributable to equity shareholders {(after adjustment for diluted camings)
by nverage number of weighted equity share outstanding ot the end of the year.
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#. Taxes on Income
Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred tax

Current tax is measured of the amount expected Lo be paid on the busis of relief and
deductions available in accordance with the provisions of Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 and
incledes Minimum Alemate Tax ("MAT™) paid by the company on book profits in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 MAT credit is recognized s
an asset only when and 1o the extent there & convincing evidence that the Company will
pay narmal income tax during the specified period and will be able to set off such MAT
credit entitlement.

Deferred income tax reflects the impact of the current yeas's reversible timing differences
between the taxable income and accounting income for the Year and the reversal of liming
differences of the carlier Year. Deferred tax ik measured based on the tax rates and tax bws
enacted o substantively enacted ns at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only 10 the extent there i virtual cerainty that sufficient fubure taxable income
will be available agaimst which swch defierred tax assets can be realized.

In FY 2009-20 and eowards, i pursuant 1o section | 13BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961
announced by the Government of India through the Taxation Law (Amendment) Bill, 2019,
ihe company has an revocable oplion of shifing to lvwer fax rakes along with the
consequent reduction in certain tax incentives including lapse of acoumulated MAT Credit
10,  Impairment ofAsseis:

An Asset 5 comsidered ns impaired in accordance with AS =28 “Impairment of Assets™
when sl the balance sheet date there are indicalions of impairment and the carrying amouwnt
of the asset, or where applicable the cashegenerafing unit 1o which the assels belong,
exnceeds ity recoverable amount (Le., the higher of the assets net selling price and value in
usel. In mssessing ihe value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected from the
continuing use of the asset and from ifs uliimate disposal are discounted to their present
values using a predetermined discount rte. The camying amount is reduced io the
recovernble amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairmeend boss in the profit and
lss account.

11. Provision of Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Lishilities as defined in AS 29 on “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assetn” are disclosed here. Provision is made if it becomes probable that an outflow of future

economic benefits will be requared for an item previowsly dealt with as a contingent liability.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and il is more likely that an outllow of resources will be pequired to setile the obligations and the
amound has been reliably estimated. Swch provisions ane not discounted to their present value and
are determined based on the management’s estimation of the obligation required 1o scitle the
obligation at the balance sheot date. These are reviewed of each balance sheet date and adjpusted 1o

refllect management's turrm:iﬂmuu

F
'-.

109



V-MARC INDIA LIMITED
(C1N-L31S0SUR2014PLCO0] D66}

Cantingent Nabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where it is more likely than not that a present
ohligation or possible obligation may result in or invelve an outflow of resources. When no
present of possible obligation exists and the possibility of an outflow of resources is remate, no
disclosire is made.

Cimbingent axiels

Contingent asseis are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements,

12.Retiremeni Beneflis to Employees
Short ferm employee bengfits

All emploves benefits. payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term emplovee benelits. Benefils such as salaries, wages, and bonus ¢te. are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the
related service,

Lomg term employee bemefits
i) Defined coniribution plan:
Provident fund and emplovees' state insurance schemes:

All employees of the Company are entithed to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is
8 defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the emplover make monthly contributions (o
the plan at & predetermined rmie (presently 12%) of the employees' basic salary (subject o a
maximum basic salary, a8 per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous
Mrovisions Act, 19520 These contributions are maide o the fund administered and managed by
the Government of India. In addition, some emplovees of the Company are covered under the
employvess’ state imsurance scheme, which is also o defined contribution scheme recognized and
adenimistered by the Government of India

The Company’s contributions to both these schemes are expensed off in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, The Company has no further obligations wnder these plans beyond its mosthly
contribulions,
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ii) Defined benefit plan:

@) Crrmfuity:
The company pays gratuity as per Gratuity Act and hence the company has started 10 creste
provisions in Books of Accounts foe payment of Gratuity as per Actuarial Valuation repor.

b Leave Emcavhmint
As per company Policy, Leave Encashment is paid to employee at the of Retirement/Leaving
from Organization. In current year company has created provision on the basis of Actuarial
Valuation Report.

13, Governmeatlrant

CGiovernment Grants are recognized when there is 8 reasonable assurance that the same will be
received. Revenue prants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Capital grants
relating to specific fixed assets arc reduced from the gross value of the respective Fixed
Assets. Other capital grants are credited 1o Capilal Reserve.

14. Borrowking Cost
Borrowing costs are determined in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard —
16. Borrowing costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for the intended wse. All other borowing costs are
charged 1o revenue,

18 Current Amets, Loans and advances

The balance under iem of Sundry Debbors, Loans and Advances, and Current [iabilitees are
subject 10 confirmation and reconcilistion and consequential adjustments, wherever
applicable. However, in the opinion of the Management, the realizable value of the current
assets, loans, and advances in the ordinary course of business will not be kess than the value
at which they are stated in the balance sheclin the opinion of the board of directors, the
current assels, loans, and advances ore spproximate of the same value if realized in the
ordinary courses of business and the provision for all known liabilities is adequately made
and nod i excess of the amount reasonably consider necessary.
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NOTE Mo 2 :SHARE CAFITAL

b o

L]

% Ne  Partculams As on March As on March
3 ,:m 31,2021
I Awtherised Share Capiial
3,040,060 0460 Equiky Shares of Ba. 10V par value. 2.500.0:0 2,500.00

Total Rs 2,500.00 2,500,00 |
[2ITES b= (PY |.m,u,|&w-] Egqaity Shares of Re 10'~cach 227857 1.678.57
Total (Ra) 2,2T8.57 1,678.57
RECONCILATION OF SHARE CAPITAL .
Particulary Shares Equity Shares

Number (in Lacs) Mumber (in Lacs)

Shares Cretstarbing o the beginmang ol e yea 107.68 155,45
Shares imsued during e yoar 60,00 g.40
MEEMIE' Wh VeI - -

Shares Duisiandiog ai the end of the year _22T.8E 16786

The eompany his oaly o cliss of eqaily shares luving & par vabee of Bs 1000 per share. Each sharcholder is eligible
for one vose per skare. In the event of lquidatson of the company, the holders of sharcs shall be entitled %o receive my
ol ihe remaining, ety of the company, afier distribubion of afl preferential smounts. The amount distributed wifl be in
groportion 1o the number of equity shares hedd by the shaehokders

HAME OF SHARE HOLDERS HOLDING SHARES MORE THAN 5%

Farticular As on March As on March
31,2022 3,.2021
Dinme o Sharehelders Ho. of Shares Ho. of Shares
hield fin Lacs) held {in Lacs)
Equity Khares fully pevied up
Mr. Vikas Garg 125,82 125.92
Ms Meenaiodhi (arg 3348 3345
i Madiukar Chimanlal Sheil B.A5 8.40
Total (Hx) 168,26 167.81

w#ﬁilnj'ﬂh\'lfl'l'ﬂi'

“sage of Shares Held !

| Mr Wik Garg E5.28 75,04
} Ms. Micenakshi Gary 14.70 19.96
¥ MrMadhukar Chissanlal Sheth _3.86 5.01

‘Tatal T1.B4 100.00
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R, in Locr unlees obhorwars skalsd

& |The company has meucd and alketied B0,00,0000- ¢quity shares of Ra. [0 cach daough [0 process: on (790 102 al
sk i aff Be 39% per equily share(incheding promiam of Ba I'J'pcrrqnijiwﬂwiniwﬂ.i-m-m Lisea.
Purssani o the slloimesd of equity shanes throogh IO process, the pasd up equity shan: gritel of the ompany stands
increased ot . 2278.57 Lacs. [seor Expenses mnountsng to Rs. 100.%4 Lacs incured in relation 1o IO §or fresh issue
ol shares b0 genoral public have bevn chagod ofl agasac the Seouiises Fremium Account in soouedence with b
provisions of Soctice 52 af the Companies At 3011, Precoeds of 10 bisue has boen utilised a5 under s per the object

of the issue.

As on March As on March
Ferpess/ Ead U'se ol I} Proceeds !1.!‘!12 31 |2ﬂ2'l
For Set-up of Mew Manufactensg Lnir® 150000 =
Working Capital Bequirement 50000 -
{iereral Corporaie Purpose 3400 32T .60

Inchudiag Cheques baued for Rest S0- Lucs bui el presented till 3151 March, D022

T |DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDMNG BY FROMOTORFROMOTOR GROUF

As on March As on March
14,2022 31,2024
No., of Shares Mo, of Shares

hald {in Lacs) held {in Lacs)

125,52 12552

33,45 3345

1 o0 O 1,000.00

1.159.41 1,160.41

51 | % of Equity Shares Hekl s on March 31,2022 As on March | % Change during
31,2021 the ¥ear*

| M Vikes Cary 5526 75.02 16.75

I Ms. Meenakshi Clarg 14.70 19.65 5,25

1 Mr.Anug G A3 KT 55,75 156.87

Total S0 B90.71 181.68
% Change has boen compsied on the basis of shares hiekd ai beginning of the yesr

MOTE Mg, ). RESERVE & SURPLUS

5 bin |Partivulars A5 on March As on March
31,2022 31,2021
|Sezuricy Premilum 1.839.07 -
| Surplys (Frofil & Less Accownl)
Upesing Halanoe 2,515.20 1,835.88
Add ; Addition during the F.Y JH.E ETH.34
Totsl (Rx) & 553.49 | 2. 518,20
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Y-MARC INDIA LIMITED

CE-LI OB D AL e
MNOTES TO FINASTULAL STATEMENTS
HNOTE Mo 4. LONG TERM BORROW INGS

5 g, Term Boarrvwhegs (* & *") As s Marh As on March
32022 32
A
I [Term Lo from Pusjab Maional ok - 431.78
2 |Veteche Loan from Panal Mataral Hank (Hyp Swall Car) 174 4 54
¥ Vi Loaa feomn Pansab Matenal Bk (Hyp-Erign Cm B.53 7.83
& |Wehicks Lo from Pansal Matsnal Bank §Hyp -Foiuser C; 1587 2001
5 {SME Equspment Lo from EOL Fmance Limised - 2055
6 |SME Fquspesea Lo from ECL Finance Limised 2785 BE2G
7 JGECL Wiorking Capsal Losn from Panjsh Natanal Rk s 1511
i BECL Working Capial Loan from Punjab Wstenal Bank 583,80 TO4.46
L Bl Wrking Capital Lioan fiom KU1 Bank Lesied ? Rl i]
W GECL Wirking Capital Lo liom Pyl Natasnal Bank 800 %
I JGECL Wrking Caprial Leen From Induslnd Bk TR .
12 | L Firvom Sommaras Firssceal Servie vt Lid TROLAO .
(] - -
|I.=|| “{wrest Maburies of Long Torm Borrrsangs
dischoind ander the hewd "Short Tesm Borrpwings™ . 402.18 - ]
Todal |Ru) A=l __1.280.70 T11.85
*There is no deizu® in Repaymend of Loas
## vy f Coendhiioms of abowr ks oo o skt o (i Cinosolegionl manse)
|55, "Th-ml_lﬁﬂ. Matare all Favility & Habr al Frmary Seomrity Iilr-lfll-m.lt
Sanctimaed | insit R — - —
1 Punab Mabional Baak | Toem Loan of Ba 165 Lacs | BCLRIE verd | Hypotheeston of Sechi of Raw Repayable in B Instalimens of Ri
1% pa Mlatgral, Se=u Funontund and puchog 8 13l s parramesang we T
meabonial o fhe compasy and chaige an Soplember 2009
Blbech Asaets of the company mludng
faciory land and bulkdag

Coliateral Seurdy
I;:F-:lmllldﬁ Biabding nituated of Fied Mo § Segter HOC, HIE. SITCUL, Harsbwes vids repentornd s dond sw 42714272 dated 1205 1016
Fasiory Land & Bluddirg siusied af Plot Mo 4 Seci I 1, SIDCUL, Vanetwas o ale segrslered besric dond| ne K901 datend O |1 200

e | Factory lLand & Baldag uiusted o8 P e 1§ Soctod [EDC, 1E, SIDCUL, Haisteas vade iogeatered Ieasc dood no 386 daled 10 64 2000

i Faciory Lasid & Budkhiig isfialed 51 PRt Mo 15 Sased TTDC, HE, SIDCUL, Harsbaa vide rejaleial leise dogd fo THT1 datad 21 09 2016

|1 Reaidertial Houis Siumsted & Plol Mo N-11T, Shivahik Nagee, Prase <111, Handwar vide salen desd s 1844 daled 01,03 2013

1 |Panss Natiomal Bank Car Logn of Ba 700 Lacy LR ye) | Car-Manat Dieture-VIH Rerpayabic n 84 Irstallmenis -
A5 b commencing we [ October 2008
= 15 % s
¥ [angah Mahonal Bank Cas Lican of B3 980 Laoy MCLRO) yea) | Clar=Manati Suraks Friiga Hegayable u 4 Eesiallments of B
1= ) I53F - pommenging, wi §
=k % pa Eve e b 11114
4 |Payah Nabional Bask [Car Lewn of Bs 25 Laca BCLRI) ywar] | Care Toyoea Forumer Hepayable in 34 brsiallmens of K5 |
JE A%l dlr 4,12 1 commencing we
=5 05% pa 15
L JECL Fmance Lanissl, bl Equapmnnt Loan- He Fioed o 19 75% | Plarm & Machamery Repayable in 31 EM] of R 298470
& 91 50 Lacs ] =
6 JECL Foance Lamited.  [SME Equspment. Loan- W Fospd ut | 1.00% | Plant & Machery Repayable in 31 EMI of s, 5,59 213-
lirits 170 0 L &
7 |Munjab Natoral Bank Cwmsranteed Emergency Uredit | RELE A pet Exiitong Faaley wmﬁllﬂ.m
Lise Worling Capral Losn Foriiium period of 6 Montis from the
i b COTWIER 19 [ B 5 0% dage 0l [hshurserreesi
Cr b
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Emergency Crodit | ELLLE &85% | As per Eusting Fasiliy 4 Wigars from the dste of Distarsemon
Line Working Cogiial Loan [+ R89%= 7 54, waeludeng 12 Month Mot
e 10 COVID- 1% for Ba TCr fu
% [BCRCH Bark Limated Tuaranioed Frmes ey Crede | EBLK As o Exneng Facdily T Yown from the daie of Dubursement
Line Working Captal Losn |7, 7%+ 38%=
dug i COVID- IO fe e [EXS%m
19 Lacs .
15 |Penjsh Mebossd Bank. | Workang Capiial Tevs Loan iy urder Hhe sckerne waill Be Repavasie i 0 Mosths inchadog
sander GECL | 0 Experions |[RLLR{G 55%+B through Guansies Coverage | mormiorium period of 34 months. Repasd
L [ frsm MOGTC. Exiension of axsling o 6 el il inctallments of B
A% = 7 A% palpramary and oolleberal socaritios by way B5LTTA.
e 2rall ¢harge

pllalcral SECuITy

0 08 2019

o) Factory v & Buildong sitused ai Pt Mo 1 Sector BDC, HE, SIBCUL, Hasuduar wile regisiored bemn doosd ro 42714272 dabad | 2105 2006
i) Ecrory Land & Building sshusted sl Plat Mo & Secion [DC, 11E, SEDCUL, Haridwas vidle segrtered lease deed no- 8900 Sated 0. 1.2 2005
<] Factery Land & Brikdng sifuatod 6 Pt B D04 Secior [EDC, (B, SI0CUL, Blandwar vale regratered hease doed ne 14 dated 065 60 2001
;lmhﬂ'm‘ﬂ.mm-L!Mllhﬂ,"ﬂﬁl[ﬂlkﬂqﬂmﬂh*@lﬂﬂ“lﬁdlﬂ!ﬂﬁﬂ LI s 1
} Factary |ard & Bl sriutod o Plot B |5 Secus (RC, K6, SIDCUL, Hardbaat vle fegodered oo deed no THT 1 dated 71 09 2006
Besidenkial e Susied 5 Pt Mo 8527, Shivalii Magar, Phase 1L Flardwas vide sales deed no 1044 daied 1 08 23013
Eesidengid Land i Budding staste i Plot Mo (991 Gali Mo 15, Pasday Magar, Vidbwet Nigai, Vill Chandrawali, Shabdara. Delbi i nale deed no 1591

1 indurtrial Land & Budding on Fia Mo, /55652 Khasma No. JHUR-02-29, 31 3-110-3 00, Indetial Aven Will Milmill, Tahirpar, OT Rl Shahdra, e
wale sl oo mn. D435 clated 09 07 20064 & gl e . 5361 cladedd 1410 201]

I Jirehuslad Hank orking Capstal Torm Loan- | EHLR T75% + | As per Enisting Failey Weparabibe ot 4 | Momits from the Jate ad
WOGTCY Linder GECL | P = E 75 pa dintuwernenl inchadang 5 moniss of
= I A T
13 |5 emer Finasdal Provaie [Teom Loan 13 504 Laskt curmi 1y pothecation oo Fiquspreent Hoeparyable i 5 Months
Lisrutisd
=== vl Alaturibes of Long Term Berewingrc
5. M0, |Particolar s Marek A on Murch
.2 31,2021
| St Do Tewingy
1 | P s frowm Pramjand Noaniwal Bani - 30,56
1 |Viehicks Loan fram Payob Kesona! Bank iHgp Serifi Corl 1.10 1.02
3 |Fiehicke Lose from Puspab Natvna! Bk (g -Eniga Car 1.30 1.28
& ey oo froe Fasjob Natona! Bank (g - Forteer £ 4.12 87
5 SME Egupminr Loan from UL Frasce Limied - 20,68
B Equigeseni Loaw free L Fimance Limaed Zr.85 51,43
7 iV nkang vl Eoavr from Punpab Sotromal Bl - 1811
§ ECL Workeg Capial Lo from Pepak Natiosal Susl Fakthrl 138,11
¥ Y, Wonkw Cagnial Lo froes HUFCT Sond Limsnd - 13,78
i |GETL Wonking Capetal Eoas from Pugal Mool Sank . :
1 |GECL Wanking ogeial Losim From Indnlng Bk [.407 -
i Firom Semens Kimsscard Sorvaen Pt Ll 101.42 -
Tatal {Ha ) 403 294,34 |
NOTE N0, 5 OTHEH LOMG TERM LIARILITIES ;
5 %e (hiher Lang Term Lisbiline A3 o March A5 58 Marrh
.20 312021
| Sussbry Creditors (o Frul Aseis 1973 55 51
— 1973 BE5|

'I'HH!E!
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NOTE N . LONG TERM PROVISIONS:

Asspin of the comparry inchaling, lacuery lansl and baldng

% Mo | Loog Term Previsns As aa Mk A on Marth
I Jlg 31201
i EncastaTn A 8.98
2 5268 £8.67
Tustal {Ha.} 60.10 5765
HUTTE MOk T SHOMT TERM BORHUAWINGS :
A an Mash A o Merch
i Fl 2031
2, Ta5.64 LT
= A55.51
SHE.TS -
20883 207.8%
. 4514
40318 20434 |
TAsa0] 430163
Peisiary Security Terms al
Hyputhecatson of biocka of Baw Material, Sems Finshed | Repaysbio m
and packesy musleisal of the compamy and charge on Bk Dwmiand

&l Securiny

Factory Lieed i Budding snssind o Pt Bo 3 Secioe N0, 10, SIDCUL, Fardwa wibe segiatenad bease deml oo I TR TT dated 1305 2016
bl Facuory Land & mm-m&wum,mﬂm’.‘UL Hanabwar wide repstered deree deed po B908 daind 08 12 2009
§ Factory Land & Buikling ssssiod sl Piat Mo 18 Sester 110C, 1E, SIDCUL, Harsbwar vide sepatered hease deed mo J986 dbed 10:04 2012
d) Facory Land & Bealdang silused ol Flol Mo |5 Sects 1B 1RE, SID0UL, Hardaar vide regibeesd lesse deod ne 7871 daled 21 09 2016
¢ Mesabontsal Howie Sitssbed 31 Plot Mo h-517, Saivabib Nagar, Phase I8 Harstwar vide sabes dood no (64 daled 81103 2011

Tadnind Haak

Lanil of Ri §0 Oy + Ra 10
i Mon Fumed Hased Lissl

s L]
BT pa

"~ Farst it eiul CTIMGE 00 £5010e COFTET QDS 0 B
coumparry nchatleng presenl and Dalure.

Coilsural Sevunty

Koo Mo 12 &6, Village Mk
LUinoonditnmwal guarmsiee of [hrecars of the Comparny

1 % it amad Bxclurwe Charge: by waty of equtable morigape on Factory Lasd and propossd balding o sme of ¥ Marc Elociracal Private Limoed stusted s
rabpur, Hhageanpu Roorkse, PO el Tetnd Roovkoe

T |Matroral Small Edustry
Limited

P Mmrna 4w s
baank gaarares and tall

[

% PA

Hil

Hepayabie on D

116



CIN-LAVHEL R20 4P LCDH D66

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Flyures in Lacs unlias atherwines saled

NOTE NO. 8 TRADE PAYABLES :

As on March As an March
Trade Tapuiies 31,2022 31,2021
1 |Trde Payable i MSME® 328 61.39
2 |Trade Fayable 1o Others 3,783.30 344327
3 |Disputed Dues -M3SME - 2
4 Drispun % < Ithers - =
i e Total (Rs.) 3.787.18 3,504 56

* Company is in the process of identifying supplicrs who are micro enterprises or small enterprises under the Micra, Small &

Medium Enterprises Dievelopment Act, 2006.

There is no principal and inierest overdue 1o Micro and Small enlerprises. Dring ilse year Rs. 3.56 Lacs- (Y. 5.19 Lacs )
imterest has been paid to such parties. This information has been determined to the extent sisch parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company,

A on March As on March
[Frdie Pyt 31,2022 31,2021
1 Trade Payable to MSME®
Less than | vear 3.88 61.33
1-2 Years = =
2-3 Years i =
Moee than 3 Years - -
Kube Tonind FR5.) 3.88 61.38
3 Trade Payable to Others
Less than | year 3.717.38 3,280.73
1-2 Years I e2 145.73
2-1 Years 15.53 513
Sdare than 3 ¥ ears 17.76 1.69
Sarh- Toval (R} 3.783.30 3,443 27
Total (Rs.) 3.787.18 3,504 66
NOTE NO, 9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES @
S Mo |Other Current Liabilites As on Mareh As on March
31,2022 31,20

| [Sututory Dues Pavable 162.68 B5.448
2 |Expenscs Payvable 128.90 118,80
3 [Other Payables Tr.75 B3.80

4 |Chegue issued but not presenied 380.00 -

5 |LC Psvable 1,838 62 n

Total {Hs.j
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Y-MARC INDIA LIMITEDR

U1 S S0 20 | L L

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Er in Locs wniers otersioes satd

MOTE Mk 18, SHORT TERM FRUOVISIENS ;

CET FH"" Tgrm Froviskens As on March As on March
I |Prowisson for Taxation 163,10 §7.M
*  |Lewve Encashmesa 1.29 0.
3} |Ceansity _ 745 469
Twdal (M} 17181 1031
NOTE N0, 11 FROPERTY PLANT & EQUIFMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:-
e [Froperty Plani & Equipment As on March As on March
31,2022 31,2021
al Property [Mant & Eguipmes!
Cironps Bl 3080587 302055
Legn. deenmuiared Depreciarion 1.261.45 1,023.95
Ner Miack 1,700.52 1,606 70
by Imlangshls Al
Groas Sfock ™ &
T Avcwwsdhased Dipprdcidliog = =
'l-ﬂl'."llﬂ:l. = =
43 Wark in progress 28243 88.80
|| Intangible Awets wnier Develupanent = -
Tokal {Ra.3 2,081.85 & 085,30

Moie: Thess figurcs are caly shstract of Deprecistion Schedule. Detailed Depreciation Thart |8 scparately enclosd.

NOTE N0, 12. DEFERHED TAX ASSETS

|50 |Ebeferred Tax Assens Ag on March As on March
31,2022 31,2021
lai Diglerred tax Assebs { IITA )
Difference between book WY and Tex WY 21.258 §.548
CHhes S deductaon uw' ISAL 20,32 -
Tostnl Deferred tan Asspts | DTA ) 41,57 .50
(3] Pelerred tax Liabilities { DTL §
D i¥erence botween Tax WDV & Book WEHY . -
Cher INTL . e
Deferred tan Lisbilithes | IVTL ) -
ke sl defierred inn Asseis 41.57 0.59

Liss: hefierred Tax Assets nof roougnized comsidering mater of
pruslemce

.58

A Ml Delerred Tax Asseis
F Mat Credit Entitlemend -
Total Deferred tay Asseis | A + 1) Izi
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MUTE SO, 13 LONG TERM LOARS ANDADYANCES ;

VALARC INDLA LIMITED

C =L 1T R P LCTH s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rv. o Loacd mnidve i enbiietrara b miciisnd'

% Mo |Long Term Loans & Advsnces As on March As on March
31,2022 31,2001
Capital AdvancosSegurilcs (U nsecued:
| |Advesee for Land 18.%0 18.90
2 [Advesce for Machinery 1.188.80 203
3 Ashvaee ke w B13.52 -
Tatal (Hs.) 1, 758,02 20.93
SOTE NO0u 14 STATEMENT OF OTHER 305 CURRENT ASSETS :
L7 As on March As on March
Oiber Mon Currest daset
, i ’ 31,2022 31,2021
| |Secwwity Depisits 101.00 £1.37
" iviargs Mooey hieled witks banks as per berms of sanction of Lows 116.54 18812
Total (Hs.) 2754 179,49 |
NOTE N, 15, INVENTORIES ;
Imw emlories Az on March As on March
3 Hll%i
Haw Miatcnal 218583 1.011.73
Sluch i Process 211.15 g9.67
Finished Ciods 4,124 45 4 376,54
Packing Matwrsls 102.39 34.01
Seran 25.04 35,11
[Towl iR} 5.557.47

Finished poods ase valued of oot or net realwable vabes on FIFO method. The quanhify and value of The stock g taben &
oertified by the mansgement of the company

NOTE M0, 1§ THADE RECEINY ABLES ;

5 No || Trads Hegrivables Az on March Az on March
31,2022 31,2021
I diigraad ovirnauired | ot
Diebis Oatstanding for & persod < & Month 5 158.88 258309
Dicis Osatmanding for 8 pened > 0 hoath 1481.71 £01.45
P |Undpeted Commidersd Dpnbiul - =
3 |Disputed Trode Recenables considered good -
4 |Dispoted Trade Recenvables comsidered Dosbiful . -
| Tudal (Ha.) 6.640.56 | 3.484.53 |
Aging of Trade Begeivabies from the due dats of Payment:-
Az on March
Truile Reorivable 39,3884
I |Unsegured. considored {ieed
Leas than & Months 2 BE3.08
B Mot w0 | Yean 14814
=2 ¥ears 10.E8
2-} ¥ear 114.79
hore than 3 Yemi I36.67
i Tolal (1) 3,484.53




CTN-LI I 201 4L 6

SOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re i Locy palery othersisrs rioied

NOTE MO, 17, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

& Ma |Cash & Cush Eguivaloads Az on March Az on March
| 31,2033 31,2031
| |Cash=in-Hamd - ¥ 053
1 |Baliscs in Basbs withz. . -
a) | Pusgjeb Netesnsd Denk (Ade Mo, 100021000 TH0E) 5,29 0.1
by |BCECE Bank Lumiies] 0.61 .12
Purjab MNatsoaal Rank (A P | E86002 | KRITEL4) 0.00 3.04
jab Malmeal Hank (Ads Mo 14860002 | (IRAEEDS ) 2.1 260
16.03 644
SOTE ML 18 SHORT-TERM LODANS AND ADVANCES :
5 Mo [Skert Torm Loans & Advences A :ﬂ March M!:T;;I.'Imh
T bt Crtidered Toed ,2083
i Al e b SiaiT el o 27.78 6,42
1 |FDR more than | veor eanmarked wilh Rank 15 0 813,35
3 6.20 1.87
BE9.56 521,54
WOTE M0, 1%, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS :
_ As on March As on March
% Moo (hilser Current Assgts 11,2022 200 |
1 [Preped Exponscs & Accured brlorest 71.534 15827
2 [WAT Hecovensble 18,19 18.18
1 |GET Iepat 18,75 6.90
4 TISTLS Hevoverable 21,34 15.41
5 |Advance io Suppliers 457,72 Ti.54
6 |Esmest Momey Deposiis 121.88 120.50
T |Chogue Recoived ! |ssued under clearing - B52.13
Tatal (K. T46.03 1,250,594
NOTE Wik 2 REVENUE FROM DPERATIONS :
Hevraur Frem Dperations As on March As on March
5 Mg 31,2022 o -l I
1 Saben of Coods Mamufscienpd-Hetails 10.516.88 12,302, 74
I |Sakes of Goods Masulsctered=Covernmenl Clicots 6 220,07 5.210.38
¥ [Sabe of Tradded Goods 1. 364,78 =
Total (Hs] 18,101.73 17.513.10
Less: Excise Dhury 5 =
Total (Hxj 18,101.73 17,513.10
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X-MaRC INDIS LIMITED

CIN-LINMBURI0 AP LODE D
NUOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K A Livcs pnldil aherwises rcupn

NOTE R 21 OTHER INCOMES ©

% Mo |Other Income As on March As on March
31,2022 32021
| |Remsd Inooese: 080 0.60
2 |bsteresy acenmd bul nol roscived 0.62 -
3 |lsterest vn Secarity Deposit 0.78 0.81
1 |lsterest on PR & L Roccivabie G278 34,54
5 bimber lncoeme 3037 -
6 |Profit an Ssle of Aty - 0.E4
Total (R} 9534 36.89 |
NOTE M4, 22 OO8T OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
% Mo |Pariiculsrs As on March As on March
31, 3033 31,2021
mf  |Haw Maberad O ossomed
Upening Suock 1,045.74 519,56
Aild Purchass 14,022 B2 15,060.01
I [Escounl Beg - =
Tutal 15,068,556 15,975,587
Less: Chmang Slock 2.298.02 1,045, 74
Haw Materisl Conswmed 12,770.54 14,933.83
NOTE 30, 23 PURCIIASE OF TRADED (z0d0D%
% No |Pariiculars As on March As on March
3 31,2021
a) [Copper Wire and Aluminsss Wire 1,168 B2 .
Total Rs. 1,356.62 -
ROTE N0, 24, CHANGE IN INVENTURIES :
5 Na |['h|p in lsvenlories As on March As on March
: . 31,2022 3,201
-1 -
(3pening Halance S8ET 02,54
lang Halanco = 21116 - 99 87
by |Einished Gogde-
Upening Balance 4.412.058 317106
Closmg Balance - 434950 - 4 41208
<1 Lrmiled Groods;- .
Upening, Halanir .
Chosing Ratance ’ i
Total (R 133897
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Y-AARC INDIS LIMITED

CT%-L I POEUT RO APLOM 1S

KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KOTE M. 25 EMPLOYEE BESEFIT EXPENSES :

Ri in Ly unieis ofeoraes e

S [Lmplerre Benchit Expenses As on March As on March
31,2022 21,2021

1 |Sadary to Disccion 196,77 181.50
I [Wages 381.64 32285
3 |Salary 288,11 247,30
4§ |Cootribution Lo Providesh lund 2816 18.07
% |Costnbation to Employne S lessraners Schenic 7.9 .94
i |Cienmaity Exponsss 10,13 13,18
7 |leave Encashment Expenses 0.a7 1.8
§ | 5l wellan 14.03 408
| Toesl (Rx 923.1% B05.10

NOTE %0, 16, FINANCE COsTs

IT% =0 |Fimamce Cost

As on March Mnnil-lrdi

_]1.1221,___-}1&-”—-—-

1 |Bask Charges & Comenisiion 126,85 BB.E3

2 |inierest on Loans 52387 434,05
Tl (Hap EEL.E1Y 5232,

NOTE NO. 27, DEPRECIATION AND AVIORTIZATION EXPENSES -

5 he mpaiﬂhllﬂmrﬂmhlhpﬁn

As on March Am on March

31,2022 31,2021
] l'.lw:-'!.'!l:i.ﬂmh Eﬁ?ﬁ'ﬂ 1““
e Tetal (Ha} 25750 188.68
NOTE NO, 18, OTHER EXPENSES :
S Na [LHber Eapeases As on March As on March
34,2022 31,2021
i
1 |[Commumable Cousls 10.27 11.87
7 Frcagit & loaling charges 2554 2165
1 |Fleciniciy Fapenses 13865 116.54
i |Repair & Mainienasce -Flant & Machinery AT 45 29.06
5 Nenorser Russang Exp 84,97 5429
& |Joh Works charges 244 14 283,08
7 |Licerse: & Testing Fox 37,58 4401
B
| [Busizess Promotion 36,54 .50
1 |Carmage Outwasd 180.13 136,50
3 lLoading & Unlosksg 12.68 11.43
4 |Commamson on Sakes 64.068 10275
4 |Conveynos Bxpomes 24.00 15.96
6 |Discouni & Laie Delivery Charges 235,06 38T
7 |Advertiserent Expenses 34.80 B0.TO
g [|Dhiwoli Expenscs 14,78 16.51
4 | Donskson 1.47 1.04
10 |Electrciiy Exposses 0.0 0.54
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Y-MARCINDIA LIMITED

O L SR 2014 L G

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R in Loy undery othorwines sl

Il [Foos & Tascs 40.18 e
12 |lnusrance 3842 12.81
13 [Legal mnd professiosal charges 68,55 31,52
i4 [Rent 132.52 80,55
1% [Postage & Coarior Exponscs 2.1 X137
I |Priniing & Stastionery 8.30 3.22
IT |Kepair & Mainbenamoe 6.78 5.03
1B |Securily Faclsry promises 33,34 27.08
19 |Susmdey Fapessss 3,80 183
2l |ROC Fes 0.25 4.32
13 |Tender Fee 12.05 5.10
23 |Ausdil Fec 5,55 4.20
M |Misccllanooss Expenses 1.7 1.07
25 |Trawelling Expenscs 39,48 17.37
16 |Iniones on Income Tax, Lave Fee & Other Imterest 26.54 2.23
27 |Inicres o Purchase of Cisds 3788 8002
13 |imerest on Security Deposity 2,08 1.09
M |Bad Debis 039 5078
30 [CSR Expenditan® 14,60 B.A7
Tutal (Rs) 1,637.02 1,544.25
L orperpis Secial Respensibilie-
% e |Pariiculiics As on March As on March
31,2022 31,2021
a) | Amoun of CSE regaired iv be spent as per 5. 133 of Companies
LAt 2007 resd with Schedale-Y 11 14,80 BAaT
Bl |[Amount of CSR Spond durieg the Yoar 14,80 =
©) |Eadier Year ecent of OS5 spent during the year 9.39
dl  [Secier wise Broak up of Expesditurs - -
Esbstation Soctor (Y 2001221 14,80 =
Donation o Socities having ebieat s spocifiod in Schedule -V of
‘ompanies Al Earlier Years 2.0 -
PM Care Fund=Farlier ¥Viears 719 -
) |Pending Dbligation al vear end . 817




Y-MARC [INDLA LIMITED

O N FOELRD0 L SF L i
SOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re im Lacy maleny oiberwizes vaied

NOTE N0, 3%, CONTINGENT LIARILITIES |

= -

Ason March D102 Asom March :Hg:El
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NOTE M0 31 RELATEDR PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(A List of Relsied Parties:
Fartslars 'p

An on March 31 2022 As e March 31,202
| Kory Manaponen] Persotnel (KMF) & Derector
Shri Vikas Carg Dwrecios Dhrector
Smi Meenakubs Larg Direcios Director
Shini Sascdocp Kentar Sqvastave (Resgmed on 23,02 TZT) Diresciod Directar
Shni Aloak Kenar Tobsyan [ Appirdad on 2000 2077 Dreciod -
S Migkenh Tamaal Independan Direcior  Addibonal Director
Shn By Kumar Passdey Independont Direcior  Additional Director
€5 Chanchal Garg {Rawgnad an 31180 1) Gomp. Sacy, Comp, Sacy.
% Kaachan Cupta [ Appeoinsed on 0] 03 2020} Comp. Secy, Comp. Secy.
Vica President-
Shr1 Meeraj Kumar Fhaied ‘ice President- sales sales
Ragional Maragar-  Regional Manager-
Woir. Cherbas Ahmsd iChaa Salas Sahes
Genaral Manadger- Genstal Manager.
Shari Shv K ishore Faa Froducton Presduction
General Manager- General Manager-
Shei Suveshs (handes Chardols Cuality Chusality
General Manager-  General Managsr-
Shai Vipery Buat Sales Salps
Wice Presicent- Wice Presaden-
{5t Cvan Prakash Sharma T Cial commafcial
Shi Banygun Kumar Sav o CFD CFO
|Eniprprises swerd wr Siguilcastly mfloreced by Ky Viansgemeni perssanel  W-Marc Elocincals Pvt W-Marc Eleciricals
i Uiir relatives Limifted Pvi Limied
Asia Ambrosia India Asla Ambrosia
Private Limited india Prvate Limited
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X-MARC INDIA LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MUTE NOL 36 FTHER STATUTORY INPORMATION:-

i) The Comgpary 8o not have msy [enami property, where sny proceeding has been nftisled or pending agamst the Comgay for holdag smy
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i) The Comparry do nof bave sny ramactions wills companigs simuck off

i) The Ciompany di ol have any chaiges o salislnciion whach s yei o be pegiitered with HOC beyond the statutory peviod

i h The Company baree nol traded or mvesiod in Crypio conrency of Yirtual Currency dunng ihe (nangial vear

ok That Comgrassy bervr nof ashvanced or loaned on imrvesiod Fands o ey other persoadsp of eolityi e, inchaling Setign
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Lompary {Liimale Beoseliciares), o
B provide aimy pundasiss, secwrily of e bk %0 or on Sobal (ol the Lltenste Benel5cisries
¥} The Company barve not received aey fand [rom sny porsinis ) of ontibeies), includng forcugn entities {Fusding Pany jwith the
ursherizanding (whether soooided o winlssg of Diheiwiis ) tht the Conmpary ihal]
ul dwevtly oo indwecily lend of myvest in olher persms or enties identiliod in amy manser whatseeve by o an Beall of the
Fundmg Party (Lllimate Bene fcianc), o
Bl peovide afy guarantes. scoeily o The ke om bohall of the Lilimaie Bese foianey
vil} The Ciompany have not asy such ssssaction which i sl recsnded i the books of scooants that bas been veerendered o doghoied 3
income during the year is the fan ssessments under the lacome Tax Ad, 1961 sech m, search of sunvey o sy other relevam peosision of
ke Incceme Tax Act, 1981

A8 U Sepaints Heport of Even Diate For & on behall of ike Board of Direciors
Frl.l,llln-lqlli Ll ill"l"rl'l'hl'tlli-l.l Limnited

iy F/
1.(.‘.1 Sumil Mll-t Kuemar 'I'il:lhr- ikas Garg
ummmu IJ-I'H-EII[FHEIH?
FRMN: 008693

Date:28th May, 2022 ﬂh‘ Gugpts

PMace: Haridwar Campany Secretany
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V-MARC...

sy B

NOTICE OF THE NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
shareholders of V-Marc India Limited will be held on Thursday, September 29, 2022 at
11:00 a.m. (IST) at the registered office of the Company through Video-Conferencing
(“VC”)/ other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt of the Audited Standalone financial statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vikas Garg (DIN 05268238), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a special resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder ( including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Article of
Association of the Company, Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan (DIN: 09462547) who has been
appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Executive & Non-Independent Director
of the Company by the Board of Directors effective February 26, 2022 with the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and holds office up to the
date of this Annual General Meeting, is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed
as a Director, liable to retire by rotation."

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a special resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197,198 and 203
read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company, approval of the members be and hereby accorded for
appointment of Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan (DIN: 09462547) as Whole Time Director of the
Company for a period of three years with effect from February 26, 2022 to February 25, 2025
on a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 30,00,000/-per annum by way of salary, perquisites and
commission which the Company is entitled to pay as per the provisions of section I of the Part
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IT of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any re-enactment thereof (on the terms
and conditions including remuneration as set out in the Explanatory statement annexed to the
notice, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred as the Board which term
shall include the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board) to alter and vary the
terms and condition of the said appointment and /or remuneration as may deem fit.)”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan, Whole Time Director be
entrusted with such powers and perform such duties as may from time to time be delegated /
entrusted to him subject to the supervision and control of the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vikas Garg (Managing Director) be and is hereby
severally authorized to execute the agreement incorporating the above terms on behalf of the
Company.

Ratification of Remuneration of M/s. Ahuja Sunny & Co, Cost Accountants, (Firm
Registration No 101411), Haryana, appointed as the “Cost Auditors” of the Company
for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2023:-

To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions,
if any of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to M/s. Ahuja Sunny & Co, Cost
Accountants, (Firm Registration No 101411), appointed by the Board of Directors, as the Cost
Auditor of the Company to conduct audit of cost accounting records of the Company
maintained under Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and (Cost Records and
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, for the Financial Year 2022-23 at a remuneration of °
50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the aforesaid audit and other applicable taxes, be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.”

Approval for Related Party Transactions
To pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“ RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, approval of
Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter
into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with V-Marc Electricals Private Limited,
a related party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation
2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, on such terms and conditions as the Board of
Directors may deem fit, for purchase of goods and services up to a maximum aggregate
value of Rs. 40 Crores (Rupees. Forty Crores) for the financial year 2022-23, for Sale of
Goods upto a maximum of Rs.1 Crores (Rupees. One Crores) for the Financial year 2022-23
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and For Jobwork Charges upto a maximum of Rs. 10 Crores (Rupees Ten Crores ) for the
Financial Year 2022-23 provided that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so
carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company.

RESOLVED further that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and
take such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid

resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For V-Marec India Limited
Sd/-
(Vikas Garg)
Haridwar Managing Director
August 18, 2022 DIN: 05268238

Registered Office

Plot No.3.4, 18 & 20A, Sector-IIDC, SIDCUL, Haridwar-249403, India
Tel :4+91-01334-239638;

Website :www.v-marc.com, E- Mail: agpl@v-marc.com

CIN: L31908UR2014PLC001066

NOTES:

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm
to be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the
Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through
video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can
attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate
there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through
VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons
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of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Aftairs dated April 08,
2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system
as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.v-marc.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the
Stock Exchanges i.e.National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com
respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency
for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. Or on the website
of the Company i.e www.v-marc.com.

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020
and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated
May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

8. The relevant details pursuant to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this AGM is annexed with the
notice.

9. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC
/" OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered
email address to ashishkumarsehrawat@gmail.com (Scrutinizer), cs@v-marc.com
(Company) and with a copy marked to evoting(@nsdl.co.in.
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10. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal
address, email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN),
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their Depository
Participant in case the shares are held by them in electronic form.

11. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not
yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No.
SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s website www.v-marc.com.
Members are requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participant in case the
shares are held by them in electronic form.

12. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the
AGM.

13. With a view to serving the Members better and for administrative convenience, an
attempt would be made to consolidate multiple folios. Members who hold shares in
identical names and in the same order of names in more than one folio are requested to
write to the Company to consolidate their holdings in one folio.

14. Members desirous for any information or queries on accounts / financial statements or
relating thereto are requested to send their queries at least seven days in advance to the
Company at its registered office address to enable the Company to collect the relevant
information and answer them in the Meeting.

15. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by
them in electronic form.

16. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of
Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain close from Saturday,
24" September, 2022 to Thursday, 29th September, 2022 (both days inclusive) in
connection with the Annual General Meeting.

17. The Company or its Registrars and Transfer Agents, BIGSHARE SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED cannot act on any request received directly from the Members
holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates.
Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participants.

18. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the
Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat accounts.
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19. Members joining the meeting through VC, who have not already cast their vote by
means of remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at
the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM
may also join the AGM through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

20. Non-Resident Members: Non Resident Indian Members are requested to inform
Registrar and Transfer Agents, immediately of:

a. Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement

b. Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch,
account type, account number, IFSC Code, MICR No. and address of the bank, if
not furnished earlier

21. The Company has fixed Friday, 23rd September, 2022 as the cut-off date/entitlement
date for identifying the Shareholders for determining the eligibility to vote in the Meeting.

22. Ms. Ashish Sehrawat, Company Secretary in Practice (M. No: 51861, COP No.22005)
has been appointed as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and process for the Annual
General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

23. The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to section 102 of the companies Act, 2013 setting
out facts concerning the business under Item no.3 to 6 is attached with the notice.

24. All documents referred to in the notice and other statutory registers shall be available
for inspection by the Members at the registered office of the Company during office hours
on all working days between 11:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on all days except Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays, from the date hereof up to the date of the Meeting and at the
venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

25. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in
this Notice.

26. The Instructions for members for remote E-Voting are As under:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, 25th September, 2022 at 09:00 A.M.
and ends on Wednesday, 28th September, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names
appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date)
i.e. 239 September, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being 23" September,2022.

How do 1 vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which
are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
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A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders | Login Method

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
Shareholders holding NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
securities in demat Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page
mode with NSDL. click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”

which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt
you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
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Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

MN5DL Mebile App is available on

" AppStore B Google Play

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with CDSL

. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can

login through their user id and password. Option will be
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also

able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links
of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL
to cast your vote.

. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to

register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion

. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a
link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After

successful authentication, user will be provided links for
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the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in
progress.
Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat

Shareholders (holding | account through your Depository Participant registered with
securities in demat NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be
mode) login through able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
their depository redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
participants authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in demat mode with contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.
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How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

2.

5.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12%***** then your user
ID is IN3QQ#** 2% H*Hk%

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. _ ) )
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[ 2R, then your user ID is
12**************

¢) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you
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retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.
¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(i)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting
on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting
system.

How to cast vour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active
status.
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM? link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to officenns@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or
send a request to (Narendra Dev) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:
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1.In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to (cs@v-marc.in).

2.In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
(Company email id). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4.In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE
EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for remote e-voting.

2.0nly those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3.Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4.The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for
e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through
the NSDLv e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link”
placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on
VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.
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2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
(cs@yv-marc.in). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

144



ANNEXURE-I TO NOTICE
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

[PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,

2015]
Name of Director Mr. Vikas Garg Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan
Date of Birth 02/03/1978 15/01/1973
Age 44 years 49 years
Date of Appointment 04/03/2014 26/02/2022
Profile & Expertise in Mr. Vikas Garg is the | He has 23 (Twenty-Three) years of

specific Functional Areas

Managing Director and one of
the Promoter of the Company.
He has more that 21 (Twenty-
One) years of rich experience
in the wire and cable industry.

Experience in financial management,

corporate accounting, costing &
information system and  Audit
Aspects. Talent for proactively

identifying and resolving problems,
controlling cost umbrella, developing
and implementing accounting
systems & financial controls and
decision-oriented Management
Information Systems.

Qualifications MBA (Marketing) Chartered Accountant, B.Com (Hons)

Other Positions Nil Nil

Directorship of other | 1.V-Marc Electricals Private Nil

Companies Limited
2.Asian Ambrosia India
Private Limited

Membership of | Nil Nil

Committees in  other

unlisted Public

Companies

Inter Relationship Mr. Vikas Garg is the | Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan is not
Promoter and  Managing | related to any Director of the
Director of the Company Company.

Shares held in the 1,25,92,100 (55.26%) Nil

Company as at
31 March,2022
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

ITEM NO. 3

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan (DIN: 09462547) was appointed as the Additional Director (Executive
& Non-Independent) of the Company with effect from 26" February, 2022 by the Board of
Directors under Section 161 of the Act and as per the Articles of Association of the Company. In
terms of Section 161(1) of the Act,

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan holds office only upto the date of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting but is eligible for appointment as Director. A notice under Section 160(1) of the Act has
been received from a Member signifying his intention to propose Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan as
Director.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in
the proposed Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice.

The Board of Directors thus recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 of this Notice for your
approval.

ITEM No. 4

Mr. Aloak Kumar Tulsiyan (DIN: 09462547) was designated as Whole-Time director of the
Company with effect from 26" February, 2022 by the Board of Directors for a term of three years
starting from 26" February, 2022 on terms and conditions as set out below AND THAT Mr. Aloak
Kumar Tulsiyan be paid the remuneration as stated below for the period of three years i.e. from
February 26, 2022 to February 25. 2025 with liberty and authority to the Board of Directors to alter
and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment from time to time within the scope of
Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act.2013 or any amendments thereto or any re-
enactment thereof subject to review by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and as may be
mutually agreed subject to the approval of the members of the Company in the General Meeting.

S.No. | Particulars Remuneration

1. Salary Rs.30,00,000 Per annum

The Whole Time Director shall be eligible for the following perquisites which shall not be

included in the computation of the ceiling on remuneration specified in Section 11 and Section 111

of Part 11 of Schedule V to the Act:-

a. Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either
singly or put together are not taxable under the Income-tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961 )

b. Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of
service: and
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c. Encashment of leave at the end or the tenure.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in
the proposed Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice.

The Board of Directors thus recommends the Resolution at Item No. 4 of this Notice for your
approval.

ITEM NO. §

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Board of
Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee at its meeting held on August 18, 2022
appointed M/s. Ahuja Sunny & co, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No 101411),, as the Cost
Auditor for audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31,
2023, at a remuneration amounting Rs.50,000 (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) plus taxes as
applicable and out of pocket expenses, if any. In terms of the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to Cost Audit shall be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, the consent of the members is sought for approving the Ordinary Resolution as set
out in Item No. 5 for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2023 by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Copy of documents referred in the proposed resolution shall remain open for inspection by the
members at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours on any working
day.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in
the proposed Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice.

ITEM NO. 6

V-Marc Electricals Private Limited is involved in the business of Wire Drawing and making
Conductor which is a key raw-material in your Company’s Business operations. We have quality
control, timely delivery and better price on the product so your Company is able to take the

advantage of the large volumes.

Section 188 of the Act and the applicable Rules framed thereunder provide that any
Related Party Transaction will require prior approval of shareholders through resolution, if
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the aggregate value of transaction(s) amounts to 10% or more of the annual turnover of the
Company as per last audited financial statements of the Company.

The value of proposed aggregate transactions with V-Marc Electricals Private Limited is likely to
exceed the said threshold limit, as specified for the F.Y 2022-23.

Hence, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your Company with V-Marc Electricals Private Limited in the
financial year 2022-23.

The Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date,
particulars of the transactions with V-Marc Electricals Private Limited are as follows:

S.No. | Particulars Remarks

1. Name of the Related Party V-Marc Electricals Private Limited

2. Name of the Director or KMP who is | Vikas Garg & Meenakshi Garg
related

3. Nature of Relationship Common Promoter & Director

4. Nature, material terms, monetary value and | Contract for  purchase of  raw
particulars of the contract or arrangement material(goods) shall be on a continuous

basis. Monetary value of proposed
aggregate transactions during financial year
2022-23 is expected to be Rs.40 (Forty)
Crores

Contract for Sale of Goods shall be on
continuous basis. Monetary value of
proposed aggregate transactions during
financial year 2022-23 is expected to be
Rs.1 (One) Crores.

Contract for Job-work shall be on
continuous basis. Monetary value of
proposed aggregate transactions during
financial year 2022-23 is expected to be
Rs.10 (Ten) Crores

5. Date of approval by the Board of Directors | 28/05/2022

6. Date of approval by the Audit Committee 28/05/2022

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Vikas Garg & Mrs.
Meenakshi Garg are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of
this Notice.
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The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 6 of this Notice
as Special Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Vikas Garg)
Haridwar Managing Director
August 18, 2022 DIN: 05268238
Registered Office

Plot No.3.4, 18 & 20A, Sector-IIDC, SIDCUL, Haridwar-249403, India
Tel :+91-01334-239638;

Website :www.v-marc.com, E- Mail: agpl@v-marc.com

CIN: L31908UR2014PLC001066
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Wires & Cables

If you require any further clarification please revert to us
for deputing our representative to you for further assistance or visit sales office :

V-MARC INDIA LIMITED
Regd. Office : Plot No. 3 & 4, Sec-IIDC, SIDCUL, Haridwar - 249403.
Sales Office : 203, Aditya Complex, L.S.C. Savita Vihar, Delhi - 110092,
Ph. : 011-43025843 Email : sales@v-marc.in, Website : www.v-marc.com

Customer Support No. : +91-70555-21808

OO®E
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